Poinciana West
Community Development District

Agenda Package

September 18, 2019



AGENDA



Poinciana West
Community Development District

135 W. Central Blird., Suite 320, Orlando, Florida 32801
Phone: 407-841-5524 — Fax: 407-839-1526

September 11, 2019

Board of Supervisors
Poinciana West Community
Development District

Dear Board Members:

The Board of Supervisors of Poinciana West Community Development District will meet
Wednesday, September 18, 2019 at 9:30 AM at the Starlite Ballroom, 384 Village Drive,
Poinciana, Florida. Following is the advance agenda for the meeting:

Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance
Public Comment Period on Agenda Items
Approval of Minutes of the July 17, 2019 Meeting
Organizational Matters
A. Discussion of Process of Filling Vacancy in Seat #3 with a Term Ending
- November 2020
Discussion of Merger of Poinciana and Poinciana West CDDs
Review of Revised Rules of Procedure and Setting a Public Hearing
Discussion of Videotaping Board Meetings
Consideration of Landscape Maintenance Agreement with Floralawn Landscape
. Consideration of Proposals for Stocking Pond 6 with Fish
. Staff Reports
A. Attorney
B. Engineer
C. District Manager
i. Approval of Check Register
ii. Balance Sheet and Income Statement
D. Field Manager
i. Field Manager’s Report
ii. Customer Complaint Log
12. Supervisor’s Requests
13. General Audience Comments
14. Other Business
15. Next Meeting Date - November 20, 2019
16. Adjournment

Al ol A

= \O 0 ()
M2 0 0 NI

The second order of business is the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance.

The third order of business is the Public Comment Period where the public has an opportunity
to be heard on propositions coming before the Board as reflected on the agenda, and any other
items.



The fourth order of business is the approval of minutes of the July 17, 2019 meetings. The
minutes are enclosed for your review.

The fifth order of business is Organizational Matters. Section A is the discussion of process for
filling the Board vacancy in Seat #3 with a term ending November 2020. This is an open
discussion item.

The sixth order of business is the discussion of a potential merger of the Poinciana and
Poinciana West CDDs. This is an open discussion item and no back-up material is available.

The seventh order of business is the review of the revised proposed Rules of Procedure and
setting a public hearing to adopt revised rules. A copy of the memorandum summarizing
changes and the proposed Rules are enclosed for your review.

The eighth order of business is the discussion of videotaping Board meetings. This is an open
discussion item and any back-up materials will be presented at the meeting.

The ninth order of business is the consideration of the landscape maintenance agreement with
Floralawn Landscape. A copy of the agreement is enclosed for your review.

The tenth order of business is the consideration of proposals for stocking Pond 6 with fish.
Copies of the proposals will be provided under separate cover.

The eleventh order of business is Staff Reports. Section C is the District Manager’s Report. Sub-
Section 1 includes the check register for approval and Sub-Section 2 includes the balance sheet
and income statement for your review. Section D is the Field Manager’s Report. The report
containing the monthly treatment reports is enclosed for your review. Sub-Section 2 includes
the customer complaint log for review.

The balance of the agenda will be discussed at the meeting. In the meantime, if you have any
questions, please contact me.

Sincerely,

{*’L* A \5 Mo

George S. Flint
District Manager

CC: Michael Eckert, District Counsel
Kathleen Leo, District Engineer
Alan Scheerer, Field Manager
Clayton Smith, Assistant Field Manager
Darrin Mossing, GMS

Enclosures



MINUTES



MINUTES OF MEETING
POINCIANA WEST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
The Regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Poinciana West Community

Development District was held on Wednesday, July 17, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. in Mosaics, 388

Village Drive, Poinciana, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Charles Case Chairman

Shirley Bzdweka Assistant Secretary
Peggy Gregory Assistant Secretary
Roy LaRue Assistant Secretary

Also present were:

George Flint District Manager
Michael Eckert District Counsel
Kathy Leo District Engineer
Clayton Smith Field Manager
Residents

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the July 17, 2019

Poinciana West Community Development District’s Board of Supervisors Meeting.

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call

Mr. Case called the meeting to order, called roll, and a quorum was established.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSNESS Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period on Agenda Items

Before opening public comment period Mr. Case noted that Supervisor Lenny Vento, the
Vice Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, passed away the week before. Mr. Case spoke about
Mr. Vento for a time and expressed his condolences. Ms. Bzdweka spoke next about Mr. Vento

and stated he will be very missed. Ms. Gregory expressed her condolences as well. Mr, LaRue



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

noted that he attended Mr. Vento’s celebration of life and stated that it was a testament to
Lenny’s popularity within the community. Mr. Eckert spoke about the pleasure of working with
Lenny since he joined the Board. Ms. Leo noted that she only knew Lenny in a professional
capacity but he will be missed. Mr. Flint expressed his condolences. The Board members took a
moment of silence in remembrance of Mr. Vento.

Mr. Case asked for any members of the public that would like to comment on agenda

items to do so at this time. There were no comments, the next item followed.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters
A. Discussion of Process to Fill Seat #3 Board Vacancy
Mr. Case noted he was not prepared to discuss this item and suggested the item be tabled

to the next meeting. The Board agreed the item should be tabled.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the March 19,
2019 and May 7, 2019 Meetings

Mr. Case presented the minutes of the March 19, 2019 meeting and asked for comments,
questions, or changes. Mr. LaRue stated his opinion that there should be a live recording,
preferably a video recording, of the meetings so everyone can watch. Mr. LaRue noted he had no

comments or changes to the March 19, 2019 minutes that were in the agenda.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by M. LaRue, with all
in favor, the Minutes of the March 19, 2019 Meeting, were
approved.

Mr. Case presented the minutes of the May 7, 2019 meeting and asked for comments or
changes to the minutes. Mr. LaRue noted the second bullet point on page 5 needed clarification.
Mr. Eckert suggested they might have meant down instead of done. Mr. LaRue asked for
clarification on the third bullet point on page 6, regarding the comment from Mr. Case. Mr. Case
noted he questioned the attorney about reviewing the Ethics Law to see if anyone on the Board
was involved with any contributions or support of the firm representing Poinciana. Mr. Flint
noted at this point in the meeting the issue at hand is if the minutes accurately reflect what was

said, and he believed they did. If the Board needs to have a discussion about the content being



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

talked about and not the accuracy of the minutes, that can be brought up under the attorney
section. Mr. Eckert noted he planned to bring it up.

Mr. LaRue noted on page 8 there was discussion on the revised Check Register from
March 11t through April 30, He noted there was a corrected check register that was presented
at the meeting for the sum of $69,727.83 and that should be corrected in the meeting minutes.
Mr. Flint stated that was correct and they would get that changed. Mr. LaRue had no other
changes. Ms. Gregory voiced her opinion that they should video record the meetings or live

stream them. Mr. Flint noted he would discuss the topic of video recording later in the meeting.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Mr. Case, with all in
favor, the Minutes of the May 7, 2019 Meeting, as amended, were

approved.
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2019-06
Amending the Location of the Fiscal Year
2020 Budget Hearing

Mr. Flint presented Resolution 2019-06. He noted the original resolution set the public
hearing as being in the ballroom. Because of the renovations that room is not available, and the

new resolution is amending the location of the public hearing.

On MOTION by Mr. LaRue, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all in
favor, Resolution 2019-06 Amending the Location of the Fiscal
Year 2020 Budget Hearing, was approved.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing

A. Consideration of Resolution 2019-07 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget and
Relating to the Annual Appropriations

Mr. Flint asked for a motion to open the public hearing.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all
in favor, the Public Hearing on Resolution 2019-07 and Resolution
2019-08 was opened.

Mr. Flint presented Resolution 2019-07. He noted at a prior meeting the Board had
approved a proposed budget and set the date, place, and time of the public hearing for today for
the final consideration. Mr. Flint reviewed the revised proposed budget, and noted it was

different than what the Board had seen in May. He noted the main difference on the revenue side



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

in the new version of the budget was that they were proposing a Capital Reserve Fund be
created. The assessment line item remains the same, there is no proposed increase in the per unit
Operations & Maintenance assessment. The carryforward surplus increased to $348,853. All but
$33,000 of that will get moved to a Capital Reserve Fund. Page 6 shows a transfer in of
$315,592. This segregates those funds from the General Reserve so they are set aside for any
future projects like lake bank restoration, or storm water structure repair, failed pipes, etc. Those
would be expensed out of your Capital Reserve Fund. It makes it easier to see what you have in
Reserves.

Mr. Flint reviewed the operating expenses in the 2020 budget compared to 2019. The
operating expenses are going down by $46,000. The majority of that is engineering, attorney’s
fees, etc. As a result of meeting every other month, there’s a $6,000 savings.

Mr. Flint noted it is not a requirement to create the Capital Reserve Fund and the Board
could choose to decide to leave it the way it was in the past. In that case, they would change the
carry forward to $33,261 and remove the transfer out to Capital Reserves. Mr. Case asked for
any comments or changes.

Mr. Case asked for any comments from the public on the budget. A Resident asked if
going forward will future budgets be based on the actual expenditure. Mr. Flint noted they trued
up the line items based on what the current year projected actuals are.

Mr. Robert Santiago (1250 Cambria Bend) asked for clarification on Capital
Expenditures. Mr. Flint clarified that if they put that number on the General Fund, it would be
budgeted twice. The resident asked about attorney’s fees, Mr. Eckert and Mr. Flint noted they
were suggesting a $20,000 reduction. Mr. Flint noted they suggested the attorney’s fees go from
$50,000 to $30,000. He also noted that Engineering went from $20,000 to $15,000 and
Supervisor’s fees from $12,000 to $6,000.

Mr. Flint stated if it was more confusing to create a new account, they could use the old
system if the Board chose to. Mr. LaRue suggested continuing the old method. The Board agreed
to Mr. LaRue’s suggestion.

Resident (759 San Raphael Street) inquired about the balance sheet, he asked if the
$350,000 is required to be with SunTrust. He noted he receives 2.5%. Mr. Flint noted the types
of investments are specifically stated in the Statutes, it includes local government investments

pools which the SBA is the primary one. He stated the District is limited in what they can invest



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

in because it needs to be stable. The Board briefly discussed the pros and cons of different
accounts and the risks. The Board noted they would research all their options and choose the
option that is both safe and benefits Poinciana West.

Mr. Case asked for any further public comments regarding the budget or assessments.

Hearing none, a motion to close the public hearing was requested.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all
in favor, Closing the Public Hearing on Resolution 2019-07 and
Resolution 2019-08, was approved.

Ms. Gregory brought up the $23,000 being used to correct the water systems, and asked
Ms. Leo if they are anticipating any other extraordinary expenses. Mr. Eckert stated they will be
acquiring two more ponds at some point. Ms. Leo noted the budget estimate for Engineering was
a fair estimate. Mr. LaRue questioned if a projection of $15,000 was necessary if the closeout for
2019 was $7,000. Ms. Leo noted they had not done an annual inspection this year, and that is an
expense they will have next year.

Ms. Gregory pointed out the $2,000 that Sarah, who attended the meeting in May,
charged the Board for 7 hours. Ms. Gregory suggested video conferencing to cut down on travel
expenses. Mr. Eckert pointed out that Sarah traveled to the meeting, attended the meeting, and
prepared for the meeting and that was all included in the 7 hours. Mr. Eckert stated that travel
time is split among other meetings they have in the area. Ms. Bzdweka stated that she was tired
of addressing the same topics repeatedly at every meeting.

Mr. Flint noted that Mr. Eckert can participate at meetings via conference calls, if the
Board wanted to take that route. Ms. Gregory asked Mr. Flint for clarification about the $5,000
line item titled assessment administration. Mr. Flint stated they maintain the assessment roll for
the District, and in the contract there is a $5,000 fee to maintain the assessment roll. They
maintain the lien book with parcel ID’s, how much they pay in debt, how much they pay in
O&M, if they have prepaid the debt. It must be certified to the County annually for it to be
placed on the tax bill.

Ms. Gregory asked about newspaper advertisement fees. Mr. Eckert noted they did not
change the laws and it is still required to be printed and advertised in the newspaper. Mr. Flint
stated they have very limited options when it comes to advertising in a newspaper of general

circulation.



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

Mr. Flint continued explaining changes to the budget. He proposed increase the interest
earnings up to $4,500. They would reduce the carryforward to $39,261 which totals $335,055.
Under expenses in Capital Outlay, they will change that from $0 to $10,000. Transfer out will
change from $315,592 to $0. The Board agreed with Mr. Flint’s suggestions.

On MOTION by Mr. LaRue, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all in
favor, Resolution 2019-07 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget
and Relating to the Annual Appropriations, was approved.

B. Consideration of Resolution 2019-08 Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying
an Assessment Roll
Mr. Flint explained this resolution imposes the annual Operations & Maintenance

Assessment. He reviewed the attached exhibits, the budget and the assessment roll. The
assessment roll lists every parcel ID and what the per unit assessment is. The O&M Assessment
is not changing, it remains at $186.57 per year.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all
in favor, Resolution 2019-08 Imposing Special Assessments and
Certifying an Assessment Roll, was approved.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Agreement with All
Terrain Tractor Service, Inc. for
Stormwater System Repair Services

Mr. Flint noted the Board had previously approved the stormwater repairs and delegated
authority to the Chairman to make the final determination based on an NTE. The agreement with
All Terrain Tractor Service was brought to the Board to be ratified. The All Terrain Agreement
is for $16,462.

On MOTION by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all
| in favor, the Agreement with All Terrain Tractor Service, Inc. for
Stormwater System Repair Services, was ratified.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Agreement with Lake &
Wetland Management Orlando, Inc. for
Stormwater System Erosion Repair
Services

Mr. Flint noted the agreement with Lake & Wetland Management is for $5,000. Mr.
LaRue questioned if work would be delayed, Mr. Smith stated work had already started by All

Terrain. Ms. Gregory asked why there was no end date for either agreement. Mr. Smith stated



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

there is no set time frame but he will supervise the work and make sure it is being completed in a
timely manner, Mr. Flint noted this work is highly dependent on the weather, but they do have a

30-day written termination with no cause.

On MOTION by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all
in favor, the Agreement with Lake & Wetland Management
Orlando, Inc. for Stormwater System Erosion Repair Services, was
approved.

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Landscape Maintenance
Agreement with Floralawn, Inc.

Mr. Flint noted this was placed on the agenda at the Board’s request because the
agreement with Floralawn is coming up for renewal on October 31%. The Board discussed their
options of renewing, extending, or doing otherwise. Mr. LaRue and Mr. Smith discussed the
scope of work Floralawn does. Mr. LaRue requested that there be a written description of the
scope of work. Mr. Flint stated they would update the map and scope of work and bring the item

back for discussion at the September meeting.

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports

A. Attorney

Mr. Eckert spoke on the ongoing litigation. The next hearing is September 5 at 11:00
a.m. and that is on the people who contested the bond validation’s motion to extend time to
respond to the District’s request for discovery to prove the cost they are seeking. It is not a
hearing on the Motion to Tax Costs.

Mr. Eckert noted he represents the Board as an entity as a whole. He does not represent
individual Board members nor does he give legal advice to individual Board members regarding
their own conduct. He stated he has no knowledge that any member of the Board has committed
any violation of the Code of Ethics. Mr. Eckert reviewed the Florida Statutes that cover voting

conflicts and conflicts of interest.

B. Engineer



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

Ms. Leo noted that engineering has been quiet, and they are doing maintenance as
needed. They are considered ways to decrease their costs as well, including attendance of

meetings.

C. District Manager
i. Approval of Check Register
Mr. Flint presented the Check Register from May 1%t through July 11% for the General
Fund and payroll totaling $46,739.96. Mr. Flint asked for any questions. The Board had no

questions or comments. Ms. Gregory and Mr. LaRue opposed the vote and the motion failed.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Mr. Case, with Ms.
Gregory and Mr. LaRue opposed, the Check Register for May 1%
through July 11%, Failed to Pass the Motion.

Mr. Eckert noted if they were not going to approve the check register, they would need to
provide some direction to the Manager on what process he should have going forward. If check
registers are not approved, audits might not be approved. Audits are based on the check registers,
and those types of things could cause issues with bonds in the future.

Mr. Flint noted he had no questions regarding the check register prior to the meeting or at

the meeting.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all
in favor, the Check Register for May 1 through July 11%, was
approved.

i Balance Sheet and Income Statement
Mr. Flint presented the Unaudited Financial Statements through June 30%, the General
and Debt Service Funds. He noted in the General Fund, they are slightly over 100% collected on
the O&M Assessments. On the expense side, they are $75,000 under the prorated budget of
$280,000. The expenses are underbudget and revenue is slightly over. The Board had no

questions on the balance sheet and income statements.

On MOTION by Mr. LaRue, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all
in favor, approval of the June Financial Statements, were
approved.




July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

ii. Approval of Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting Schedule
Mr. Flint asked if the intent of the Board was to meet every other month. The Board
agreed. The Board chose to meet the third Wednesday of November, January, March, May, July
22™_ and September at 9:30 a.m. in the Starlite Ballroom.

On MOTION by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all
in favor, the Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting Schedule, was approved.

iii. Presentation of Arbitrage Rebate Calculation Report

Mr. Flint noted District is required to have an Arbitrage Rebate Calculation Report done
in order to ensure they are not earning more interest than they are paying. The IRS requires this
be done. Amtec did the report, the report shows a negative rebateable arbitrage of $239,832. He
noted that a negative arbitrage is what you want to see.

Mr. Flint noted at the last meeting it was requested that he research information regarding
having a court reporter attend, and what it would cost to video. He stated they contacted five
companies and the hourly rate for the first hour ranges anywhere from $75-$100. Every hour
after that is anywhere from $55-$80. To have the meeting transcribed, it’s a per page charge of
anywhere between $4.25-$6.50 per page. Mr. Flint noted they were easily looking at $2,000 a
year. If the Board wanted to live stream a video, they would have to have closed captions in
order for it to be ADA compliant. Price ranges from $1-$3 per minute. Ms. Gregory suggested
putting the meetings on Channel 732. Mr. Flint noted they would have to discuss that with
whoever interfaces that channel. Ms. Gregory noted that she would research more and come up
with additional options. Mr. LaRue stated they took videos of the meetings up until September of
2018, he asked who decided they weren’t going to videotape anymore.

Mr. Eckert noted the CDD did not orchestrate the videotaping, that was done by someone
who was not affiliated with the CDD. Mr. Case suggested putting this item on the next agenda to
discuss further.

D. Field Manager
i Field Manager’s Report
Mr. Smith presented the Field Manager’s report. Skimmers were repaired on ponds 2, 3,

13, and 20. In progress items are the bank restorations and wetlands. The dry ponds are not able



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

to be mowed due to how wet they are, string trimming is scheduled for July. Spraying and
management of aquatic weeds and algae is ongoing, and treatments appear to be working.

Mr. LaRue asked how far the pond bank could be restored? Mr. Smith stated they can go
about 15 feet. He noted they recommended bringing in soil because the quality of the soil already
there was so bad. Mr. Smith stated that Poinciana West has a hydrilla problem, and Clarke is
dealing with the issue. Mr. LaRue stated he spoke with a resident and she said the midges are
still an issue, but he did not see her call on the compliant log. Mr. Smith noted he would get with
Lauren and see why it wasn’t on the log. Mr. LaRue asked if there was a fish kill in pond 6, Mr.
Smith stated that five or six fish died most likely from the hydrilla.

il Customer Complaint Log
Mr. Smith presented the customer complaint log and the Board discussed putting more
fish in the ponds to try to help the midge problem. Mr. Smith noted he will solicit bids for fish in
Pond 6.

TWELTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Request

Mr. Case asked for any Supervisor’s Requests. The Board had no requests.

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS General Audience Comments

Resident (Unidentified) noted the Board should negotiate the attorney or law firms
disbursements. The resident brought up the discovery that the Board discussed during the
meeting, and stated it was odd that no one had come back with an actual amount of time they
would like for discovery. The resident also noted that typically the Chairman requests a motion,
that’s given and seconded and then voted on. He questioned whether under Robert’s Law the
Chairman should actually vote on any resolution. The resident asked for clarification on the
arbitrage rebate calculation as well.

Mr. Eckert noted that by law, the Board is not required to adopt Robert’s Rules of Order.
It is in the Board’s adopted Rules of Procedure they specifically don’t adopt them. He noted the
Chairman is entitled to vote and make motions and second just like the other supervisors. He

stated those are the Rules of Procedure for all 200+ districts his firm represents.

10



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

Mr. Flint stated the arbitrage report is in the agenda, which can be found online on the
CDD’s website. He noted the website explains why they do it, the requirement, and the detailed
calculation. Mr. Flint noted if the resident had questions after reviewing the report on the CDD’s
website, he would gladly talk with him.

Ms. Trudy Robertson (306 Moorpark Way) asked if the process of electing or replacing a
supervisor was stated in the bylaws. Mr. Flint noted anytime there is a vacancy during the term
of office, the remaining Board members appoint the replacement through the end of that term.
Mr. Case noted if there is a vacancy, they notify the community and request resumes. The Board
evaluates the resumes and try to come to a conclusion. Mr. Flint noted that 5 Board members is
the limit.

Ms. Sally May (518 San Joaquin Road) inquired about the preserves. She asked if they
were walked or checked like the dry ponds. She noted that the preserve behind her house is
building with water. She also asked Mr. Smith to check on the vines to see if they were invasive,
as it could lead to them losing trees. Ms. Leo noted the wetlands Ms. May was referring to are
under a Conservation Easement, and they are not supposed to do anything to them. Ms. Leo
noted that Mr. Smith would take a look around the area. Ms. May stated she hoped the Board
could learn to work together. Mr. Case thanked Ms. May.

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business

There being none, the next item followed.

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Date — September 18,2019
at 12:30 P.M.

Mr. Case announced that the next meeting was on September 18, 2019 at 9:30 a.m.

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

11



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

On MOTION by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Mri LaRue, with all in
favor, the meeting was adjourned.

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman

12



SECTION VIi



Hopping Green & Sams

Attorneys and Counselors

MEMORANDUM
TO: Poinciana West Community Development District
Board of Supervisors
FROM: Michael C. Eckert
Sarah R. Sandy
RE: Updated Provisions of the District’s Rules of Procedure
DATE: August 23,2019

Please find attached to this memorandum an updated version of the Poinciana West
Community Development District’s (the “District’s™) Rules of Procedure (the “Rules”). Several
substantive revisions were made to maintain consistency between the Rules and the current Florida
Statutes, including changes implemented in the most recent legislative session, as well as to
facilitate greater efficiency in the operation of the District. An explanation of each material change
to the Rules is provided below. Minor formatting changes and edits are not discussed. Should you
have any questions regarding the revisions to the Rules, please do not hesitate to contact either of us
via e-mail at MichaelE(@hgslaw.com or SarahS(@hgslaw.com or via phone at 850-222-7500.

Costs Associated with Public Records Requests (Pages 8-9)

Language was added to Rule 1.2(4) to reflect statutory language regarding calculation of
special charges for responding to certain public records requests, and to state that the District is
under no duty to produce requested records if the requestor has not paid the required costs or has
outstanding charges. The language will help minimize expenses incurred by the District in
responding to public records requests.

Financial Disclosure Coordination (Page 9)

Rule 1.2(7) was added to maintain consistency with legislation that was passed during the
2019 legislative session. The rule designates the Secretary as the District’s Financial Disclosure
Coordinator (the “Coordinator”) (unless the District designates otherwise by resolution) and
requires the Coordinator to create, maintain, and update certain records and provide them to the
Florida Commission on Ethics by certain deadlines. Each Supervisor or other Reporting Individual
must notify the Coordinator in writing if there are changes to his or her name, e-mail address, or
physical address, and must notify the Commission on Ethics of changes to his or her e-mail address.

Post Office Box 6526 Tallahassee, Florida 32314 119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 (32301) 850.222.7500  850.224.8551 fax www.hgslaw.com



Memorandum to the Poinciana West CDD Board of Supervisors
August 23, 2019
Page 2 of §

Agenda and Meeting Materials (Page 11)

Rule 1.3(3) was amended to reflect statutory requirements that the agenda and meeting
materials available in an electronic format, excluding confidential and exempt information, shall be
made available to the public at least seven days before a meeting, hearing, or workshop. The
amended rule also clarifies circumstances in which the agenda may be amended, or additional
materials added after initial posting. It additionally specifies which documents constitute “meeting
materials.” Documents that do not meet the definition of “meeting materials” may still be provided
to the Board, but will be considered supplementary materials and are not required to be made
available to the public before the meeting. Supplementary materials may include, but are not
necessarily limited to, the following: financial statements, informational reports, and copies of
receipts and invoices.

Flexibility for Board Authorization (Page 13)

Language was added to Rule 1.3(11) to allow the Board to waive formal approval or
disapproval procedures. This will allow the Board flexibility to use different procedures when
necessary and will protect the validity of the Board’s actions where there is a technical irregularity,
but the Board has otherwise made its decision clear.

Security and Firesafety Board Discussions (Page 14)

Rule 1.3(14) was added to reflect the fact that portions of a meeting which would reveal a
security or firesafety system plan or portion thereof made confidential and exempt by Florida law
are exempt from Florida’s statutory public meeting requirements. Including this rule will clarify the
procedures the Board should use to ensure that confidential and exempt information is not made
public.

Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse (Page 15)

Rule 1.4 was added to reflect legislative changes enacted in the 2019 legislative session
requiring special districts to establish and maintain internal controls to prevent fraud, waste, and
abuse. Our office plans to work with the District Manager and auditor to develop the internal
controls, which the Board will adopt in the same manner as it does policies.

Notice of Competitive Solicitation (Pages 27 and 36)

Rules 3.1(3) and 3.3(2)(c) have been amended to state that when a consultant has asked to
be provided with notice of the District’s competitive solicitations, the District Manager’s failure to
provide them with a copy of the notice will not give them bid protest rights or otherwise disqualify
the District’s otherwise valid procurement. This will reduce the District’s exposure to potential bid
protests and decrease the likelihood of a procurement being considered invalid due to a technical
irregularity.



Memorandum to the Poinciana West CDD Board of Supervisors
August 23, 2019
Page 3 of §

Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection (Page 31)

Language has been added to the introductory paragraph to Rule 3.2 to clarify that the
District need not use the procedures set out by the Rule for audits required under Chapter 190 of the
Florida Statutes, but which do not meet the thresholds of Chapter 218 of the Florida Statutes.

Additionally, the requirements for composition of the Auditor Selection Committee in Rule
3.2(2) have been amended to reflect legislation passed during the 2019 legislative session. Now, at
least one individual on the Committee must be a member of the Board; the Chairperson of the
Committee must be a member of the Board; and an employee, chief executive officer, or chief
financial officer of the District may not be a member of the Committee but may serve in an advisory

capacity.
Contract Periods (Pages 34. 56. and 59)

Rules 3.2(8)(d), 3.8(5), and 3.9(4) have been amended to set the maximum contract period
for auditing services, the maximum renewal period for contracts for the purchase of goods, supplies,
materials, and the maximum renewal period for contracts for maintenance services at five (5) years.
This will provide greater specificity to guide contract terms.

Suspension. Revocation. or Denial of Qualification (Pages 40—42)

Rule 3.4(3) has been added to specify the procedures to be used if the District wishes to
suspend, revoke, or deny a pre-qualified vendor’s pre-qualified status. It specifies what constitutes
good cause for such suspension, revocation, or denial; the effect of the suspension, revocation, or
denial; hearing procedures the District must follow; and factors influencing the time period of the
suspension, revocation, or denial.

Protest Bonds (Pages 61-62)

Rule 3.11(1)(c) has been amended to require that both the requirement for and the amount of
the protest bond be disclosed in the competitive solicitation documents, and to allow the amount of
the bond to be any amount within the limits imposed by Florida law.



Memorandum to the Poinciana West CDD Board of Supervisors
August 23, 2019
Page 4 of §

Minor Changes

The following minor changes have also been made to the Rules:

Rule 1.1(1): This Rule has been amended to clarify requirements for Board members appointed or
elected to elector seats. (Page 2).

Rule 1.1(2)(c) and (d): These Rules have been amended to include the words “at least” before the
required amounts of the Secretary’s or Treasurer’s fidelity bonds or employee theft insurance
policies to accommodate the possibility of greater amounts. (Page 4).

Rule 1.1(6): This Rule has been amended to include the Florida Constitution as a governing
authority on voting conflicts of interest. This change reflects the recently passed Amendment 12 to
the Florida Constitution. (Pages 5-6).

Rules 1.3(1)(e). (1)(d), (1)(£): and 3.2(9): These Rules were amended to allow inclusion of language
substantially similar to that recited in the Rules. (Pages 10-11 and 34).

Rule 1.3(6): This Rule was amended to require the chair or vice chair to consult with the District
Manager and District Counsel, if they are available, before calling an emergency meeting.
(Page 12).

Rule 2.0(12)(d): This Rule has been amended to allow 90 days instead of 60 days for the Board to
announce a decision on a petition for variance or waiver of its Rules. (Page 21).

Rule 3.0(3)(b): The dollar thresholds in this Rule have been increased to $2,000,000 for a study
activity when the fee for such Professional Services to the District does not exceed the increased
amount of $200,000, to reflect the current statutory thresholds. (Page 22).

Rules 3.1(4)(b). 3.6(2)(c)(ii)6.. and 3.8(2)(k): The word “responsive” has been added to allow the

Board to proceed with evaluating and selecting a proposal from the submissions if it receives fewer
than three responsive proposals. (Pages 28, 49 and 55).

Rule 3.2(3)(b): “Understanding of scope of work™ has been removed from the list of required
factors used to evaluate auditing proposals. The District may still include this as an evaluation
criterion if it wishes, but it is not required to do so. (Page 32).

Rule 3.2(7)(b): Language has been added to specify that if the Board does not select the highest-
ranked qualified auditing firm, it must document in its records its reason for not doing so. (Page 33).

Rules 3.5(2)(e) and 3.6(2)(c)(ii)3.: “Reemployment assistance” has been added to the non-exclusive
list of subjects of federal labor or employment laws of which violation may render a contractor
ineligible to submit a bid, response, or proposal for a District project. (Pages 44 and 48).



Memorandum to the Poinciana West CDD Board of Supervisors
August 23, 2019
Page 5 of 5

Rule 3.11(6): Language was added specifying that the District may reject all qualifications,
proposals, replies, or responses and start the competitive solicitation process anew if all of the bids,

proposals, replies, and responses are too high. (Page 63).






AMENDED AND RESTATED
RULES OF PROCEDURE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

EFFECTIVE AS OF ,20

_— / Formathe;: Centered, Position: Horizonta!: Left, Relative to: .
/| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Rule 1.0 General........ rerreree et rreereeaee e ennanes 3
Rule 1.1 Board of Supervisors; Officers and VOting. ........ccceveeomnmeneescsnsserneserenns 4
Rule 1.2 District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies;
Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination. ........ 8
Rule 1.3 Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops. 11
Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse.......ccceceevvveeernenennn 16
Rule 2.0 Rulemaking Proceedings. ..........ccvuereererraririresssesserssnnaenns BTN 17
Rule 3.0 Competitive Purchase. : ST s RS v enii23
Rule 3.1 Procedure Under the Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act............ 28
Rule 3.2 Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection. ..........cceereecereresrsiereseeesnesnsnnns 32
Rule 3.3 Purchase of INSUTANCE. ......cocereremererriniircsirreseseescsnnnsesssssessassnscsecssssssssns 37
Rule 3.4 Pre-qualification 39
Rule 3.5 Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build...........cccocnemmmmcresnrsnscsicsciennne 44
Rule 3.6 Construction Contracts, Design-Build............... ; 48
Rule 3.7 Payment and Performance Bonds. .........c.cocoiiiccnniiniimecincinnceccrannnes 53
Rule 3.8 Goods, Supplies, and Materials. ........ccoeeieicvernrninninecncrei e 54
Rule 3.9 Maintenance SEIVICES: wsssssssssssmsssemsmsmsanasss SR R 58
Rule 3.10 Contractual SETVICES. ......cererrcerirecirriniisieoressesesenssisesmsssessnesesesenssensasssas 62

Rule 3.11 Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5,
3.6,3.8,and 3.9. S S SRR VS SR S S N S RS RS 64

.................... .67

= e R e S (LS E At TeaBROROTG 1, Left, Lindspacing: 1.5 Iig§Tab |==s=
| stops: Not at 0.5" + 1"+ 6" + 6.5" J

y | Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




T

Rule 1.0

M

@

©)}

Q)

General.

The Community Development District (the
“District”) was created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190 of the Florida
Statutes, and was established to provide for the ownership, operation,
maintenance, and provision of various capital facilities and services within its
jurisdiction. The purpose of these rules (the “Rules™) is to describe the general
operations of the District.

Definitions located within any section of these Rules shall be applicable within all
other sections, unless specifically stated to the contrary.

Unless specifically permitted by a written agreement with the District, the District
does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or facsimile transmission.
Filings are only accepted during normal business hours.

A Rule of the District shall be effective upon adoption by affirmative vote of the
District Board. After a Rule becomes effective, it may be repealed or amended
only through the rulemaking procedures specified in these Rules.
Notwithstanding, the District may immediately suspend the application of a Rule
if the District determines that the Rule conflicts with Florida law. In the event
that a Rule conflicts with Florida law and its application has not been suspended
by the District, such Rule should be interpreted in the manner that best effectuates
the intent of the Rule while also complying with Florida law. If the intent of the
Rule absolutely cannot be effectuated while complying with Florida law, the Rule
shall be automatically suspended.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla, Stat.

05"+ 0"+ 0.5"+ 1"+ 15"+ 2"+ 25"+ 2.75"+ 3"

= “ Formatted: Headlngiz, Left, Tab stops: Not at -0.75" +

+ 3.5"+ 4.06" + 4.5"+ 5"+ 55"+ 6.06" + 6.5"

_,f Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




Rule 1.1

O

@

Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting.

Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) shall
consist of five (5) members. Members of the Board (“Supervisors™) appointed by
ordinance or rule or elected by landowners must be citizens of the United States
of America and residents of the State of Florida. Supervisors elected or appointed
by resident-eleetorsthe Board to elector seats must be citizens of the United States
of America, residents of the State of Florida and of the District; and registered to
vote with the Supervisor of Elections of the county in which the District is
located;-and and for those elected. shall also be qualified to run by the Supervisor
of Elections. The Board shall exercise the powers granted to the District under
Florida law.

(a) Supervisors shall hold office for the term specified by Section 190.006 of
the Florida Statutes. If, during the term of office, any Board member(s)
vacates their office, the remaining member(s) of the Board shall fill the
vacancies by appointment for the remainder of the term(s). If three or
more vacancies exist at the same time, a quorum, as defined herein, shall
not be required to appoint replacement Board members.

(b)  Three (3) members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the purposes
of conducting business, exercising powers and all other purposes. A
Board member shall be counted toward the quorum if physically present at
the meeting, regardless of whether such Board member is prohibited from,
or abstains from, participating in discussion or voting on a particular item.

(c) Action taken by the Board shall be upon a majority vote of the members
present, unless otherwise provided in the Rules or required by law.
Subject to Rule 1.3(10), a Board member participating in the Board
meeting by teleconference or videoconference —shall be entitled to vote
and take all other action as though physically present.

(d) Unless otherwise provided for by an act of the Board, any one Board
member may attend a mediation session on behalf of the Board. Any
agreement resulting from such mediation session must be approved
pursuant to subsection (1)(c) of this Rule.

Officers. At the first Board meeting held after each election where the newly
clected members take office, the Board shall select a Chairperson, Vice-
Chairperson, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, and Treasurer.

e = v B S
(a)  The Chairperson must be a member of the Board.
resigns from that office or ceases to be a member of the Board, the Board
shall select a Chairperson. The Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the
Board. The Chairperson shall be authorized to execute resolutions and
contracts on the District’s behalf. The Chairperson shall convene and

4 “

— S e E i
It the Chairperson

-
{

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




conduct all meetings of the Board. In the event the Chairperson is unable
to attend a meeting, the Vice-Chairperson shall convene and conduct the
meeting. The Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson may delegate the
responsibility of conducting the meeting to the District’s manager
(“District Manager™) or District Counsel, in whole or in part.

(b)  The Vice-Chairperson shall be a member of the Board and shall have such
duties and responsibilities as specifically designated by the Board from
time to time. The Vice-Chairperson has the authority to execute
resolutions and contracts on the District’s behalf in the absence of the
Chairperson. If the Vice-Chairperson resigns from office or ceases to be a
member of the Board, the Board shall select a Vice-Chairperson. The
Vice-Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the Board.

© The Secretary of the Board serves at the pleasure of the Board and need
not be a member of the Board. The Secretary shall be responsible for
maintaining the minutes of Board meetings and may have other duties
assigned by the Board from time to time. An employee of the District
Manager may serve as Secretary. The Secretary shall be bonded by a
reputable and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one
million dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee
theft insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of
one million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional
insured.

(5)] The Treasurer need not be a member of the Board but must be a resident
of the State of Florida. The Treasurer shall perform duties described in
Section 190.007(2) and (3) of the Florida Statutes, as well as those
assigned by the Board from time to time. The Treasurer shall serve at the
pleasure of the Board. The Treasurer shall either be bonded by a reputable
and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one million
dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee theft
insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of one
million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional
insured.

(e) In the event that both the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson are absent
from a Board meeting and a quorum is present, the Board may designate
one of its members or a member of District staff to convene and conduct
the meeting. In such circumstances, any of the Board members present are
authorized...to . execufe.. aggam sgselitions, .and . ofhgiedocuments ___
approved by the Board at such meetmg In the event that the Chairperson
and Vice-Chairperson are both unavailable to execute a document
previously approved by the Board, the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary may execute such document.

/| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




(€)

@

®

(6

) The Board may assign additional duties to District officers from time to
time, which include, but are not limited to, executing documents on behalf
of the District.

(g)  The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and any other person authorized by
District Resolution may sign checks and warrants for the District,
countersigned by the Treasurer or other persons authorized by the Board.

Committees. The Board may establish committees of the Board, either on a
permanent or temporary basis, to perform specifically designated functions.
Committees may include individuals who are not members of the Board. Such
functions may include, but are not limited to, review of bids, proposals, and
qualifications, contract negotiations, personnel matters, and budget preparation.

Record Book. The Board shall keep a permanent record book entitled “Record of
Proceedings,” in which shall be recorded minutes of all meetings, resolutions,
proceedings, certificates, and corporate acts. The Records of Proceedings shall be
located at a District office and shall be available for inspection by the public.

Meetings. For each fiscal year, the Board shall establish a schedule of regular
meetings, which shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
county in which the District is located and filed with the local general-purpose
governments within whose boundaries the District is located. All meetings of the
Board and Committees serving an advisory function shall be open to the public in
accord with the provisions of Chapter 286 of the Florida Statutes.

Voting Conflict of Interest. The Board shall comply with Section 112.3143 of the
Florida Statutes, so as to ensure the proper disclosure of conflicts of interest on
matters coming before the Board for a vote. For the purposes of this section,
"voting conflict of interest" shall be governed by the Florida Constitution and
Chapters 112 and 190 of the Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time.
Generally, a voting conflict exists when a Board member is called upon to vote on
an item which would inure to the Board member’s special private gain or loss or
the Board member knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of a
principal by whom the Board member is retained, the parent organization or
subsidiary of a corporate principal, a business associate, or a relative including
only a father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-law,
mother-in-law, son-in-law, and daughter-in-law.

(a) When a Board member knows the member has a conflict of interest on a
_t,&matja,mmmg before the Boardthe membgr. shogld-notifuetbeBoard’s oo e P

Secretary prior to participating in any discussion with the Board on the
matter. The member shall publicly announce the conflict of interest at the
meeting. This announcement shall appear in the minutes.

— —
{ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:

Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




If the Board member was elected at a landowner’s election or appointed to
fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election, the Board
member may vote or abstain from voting on the matter at issue. If the
Board member was elected by electors residing within the District, the
Board member is prohibited from voting on the matter at issue. In the
event that the Board member intends to abstain or is prohibited from
voting, such Board member shall not participate in the discussion on the
item subject to the vote.

The Board’s Secretary shall prepare a Memorandum of Voting Conflict
(Form 8B) which shall then be signed by the Board member, filed with the
Board’s Secretary, and provided for attachment to the minutes of the
meeting within fifteen (15) days of the meeting.

b) If a Board member inadvertently votes on a matter and later learns he or
she has a conflict on the matter, the member shall immediately notify the
Board’s Secretary. Within fifteen (15) days of the notification, the member
shall file the appropriate Memorandum of Voting Conflict, which will be
attached to the minutes of the Board meeting during which the vote on the
matter occurred. The Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall immediately
be provided to other Board members and shall be read publicly at the next
meeting held subsequent to the filing of the Memorandum of Voting
Conflict. The Board member’s vote is unaffected by this filing.

(©) It is not a conflict of interest for a Board member, the District Manager, or
an employee of the District to be a stockholder, officer or employee of a
landowner or of an entity affiliated with a landowner.

(d) In the event that a Board member elected at a landowner’s election or
appointed to fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election,
has a continuing conflict of interest, such Board member is permitted to
file a Memorandum of Voting Conflict at any time in which it shall state
the nature of the continuing conflict. Only one such continuing
Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall be required to be filed for each
term the Board member is in office.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla, Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 112.3143, 190.006, 190.607, Fla, Stat.

“ Formatted: Heading 2, Left, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0,
Tab stops: Not at -0.75" + -0.5" + 0"+ 0.5"+ 1"+ 1.5"
+ 2"+ 25"+ 275"+ 3"+ 35"+ 4.06"+ 45"+ 5"+
e e - 5.5 +- 6,06" + 6.5" e e

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Léﬂ:; Relative to:
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto )




Rule 1.2 District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies;
Service Contract Requirements: Financial Disclosure Coordination.

(1)  District Offices. Unless otherwise designated by the Board, the official District
office shall be the District Manager’s office identified by the District Manager. If
the District Manager’s office is not located within the county in which the District
is located, the Board shall designate a local records office within such county
which shall at a minimum contain, but not be limited to, the following documents:

(a)  Agenda packages for prior 24 months and next meeting;
®) Official minutes of meetings, including adopted resolutions of the Board;

©) Names and addresses of current Board members and District Manager,
unless such addresses are protected from disclosure by law;

(d)  Adopted engineer’s reports;
(e) Adopted assessment methodologies/reports;
® Adopted disclosure of public financing;

(g) Limited Offering Memorandum for each financing undertaken by the
District;

()  Proceedings, certificates, bonds given by all employees, and any and all
corporate acts;

) District policies and rules;
G) Fiscal year end audits; and
(k)  Adopted budget for the current fiscal year.

The District Manager shall ensure that each District records office contains the
documents required by Florida law.

(2)  Public Records. District public records include all documents, papers, letters,
maps, books, tapes, photographs, films, sound recordings, data processing
software, or other material, regardless of the physwal form, characteristics, or

s TNCATS. of transmissign, made,gE.
official business of the District. All Dlstnct pubhc records not otherwise restricted
by law may be copied or inspected at the District Manager’s office during regular
business hours. Certain District records can also be inspected and copied at the
District’s local records office during regular business hours. All written public

vithothe fraggagtion of . o G e -

records requests shall be directed to the Secretary who by these rules is appointed { Formatbed: Centered, Postion: Horizontal: Le, Relative to:

| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




3)

)

as the District’s records custodian. Regardless of the form of the request, any
Board member or staff member who receives a public records request shall
immediately forward or communicate such request to the Secretary for
coordination of a prompt response. The Secretary, after consulting with District
Counsel as to the applicability of any exceptions under the public records laws,
shall be responsible for responding to the public records request. At no time can
the District be required to create records or summaries of records, or prepare
opinions regarding District policies, in response to a public records request.

Service Contracts. Any contract for services, regardless of cost, shall include
provisions required by law that require the contractor to comply with public
records laws. The District Manager shall be responsible for initially enforcing all
contract provisions related to a contractor’s duty to comply with public records
laws.

Fees: Copies. Copies of public records shall be made available to the requesting
person at a charge of $0.15 per page for one-sided copies and $0.20 per page for
two-sided copics if not more than 8 ¥ by 14 inches. For copies of public records
in excess of the sizes listed in this section and for outside duplication services, the
charge shall be equal to the actual cost of reproduction. Certified copies of public
records shall be made available at a charge of one dollar ($1.00) per page. If the
nature or volume of records requested requires extensive use of information
technology resources or extensive clerical or supervisory assistance, the District
may charge, in addition to the duplication charge, a special service charge that is
based on the cost the District incurs to produce the records requested. This charge
may include, but is not limited to, the cost of information technology resource,
employee labor, and fees charged to the District by consultants employed in
fulfilling the request. In cases where the special service charge is based in whole
or in part on the costs incurred by the District due to employee labor, consultant
fees, or other forms of labor, those portions of the charge shall be calculated based
on the lowest labor cost of the individual(s) who is/are qualified to perform the
labor, taking into account the nature or volume of the public records to be
inspected or copied. The charge may include the labor costs of supervisory and/or
clerical staff whose assistance is required to complete the records request. in
accordance with Florida law. For purposes of this Rule, the word “extensive”
shall mean that it will take more than 15 minutes to locate, review for confidential
information, copy and re-file the requested material. In cases where extensive
personnel time is determined by the District to be necessary to safeguard original
records being inspected, the special service charge provided for in #ke-this section
shall apply. If the total fees, including but not limited to special service charges,
are anticipated to exgeed tugptyafivedaliagsa5.00), then, phagto commencing
work on the request, the District will inform the person making the public records
request of the estimated cost, with the understanding that the final cost may vary
from that estimate. If the person making the public records request decides to
proceed with the request, payment of the estimated cost is required in advance.
Should the person fail to pay the estimate. the District is under no duty to produce

[ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to?
£olumn, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




the requested records. After the request has been fulfilled, additional payments or
credits may be due. The District is under no duty to produce records in response

to future records requests if the person making the request owes the District for

past unpaid duplication charges. special service charges. or other required

payments or credits.

(5)  Records Retention. The Secretary of the District shall be responsible for retaining

the District’s records in accordance with applicable Florida law.

(6)  Policies. The Board may adopt policies related to the conduct of its business and

the provision of services either by resolution or motion.

(7) Financial Disclosure Coordination. Unless specifically designated by Board

resolution otherwise, the Secretary shall serve as the Financial Disclosure
Coordinator (“Coordinator”) for the District as required by the Florida

Commission on Ethics (“Commission”). The Coordinator shall cre

ate, maintain

and update a list of the names, e-mail addresses. physical addresses, and names of
the agency of. and the office or position held by. all Supervisors and other persons

required by Florida law to file a statement of financial interest due to his or her
affiliation with the District (“Reporting Individual”). The Coordinator shall

provide this list to the Commission by February 1 of each vear. which list shall be

current as of December 31 of the prior year. Each Supervisor and Reporting
Individual shall promptly notify the Coordinator in writing if there are any

changes to such person’s name. e-mail address. or physical address. Each

Supervisor and Reporting Individual shall promptly notify the Commission in the
manner prescribed by the Commission if there are any changes to such person’s e-

mail address.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 112.31446(3), 112.3145(8)(a)1., 119.07. 119.0701, 190.006, 3312:07;-Fla. Stat,

10

{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", Hanging: 0.5", Tab stops:
-1.75", Left + -1.5", Left + -1", Left + 1.75", Left + 3.06",
Left + 4", Left + 5.06" Left + Notat -0.75" + 2.75" + 3"
+ 4.06" + 5"+ 6.06"+ 6.5"

[ Formatted: Heading 2, Left, Tab stops: Not at -0.75" +
-0.5"+ 0"+ 05"+ 1"+ 15"+ 2"+ 25"+ 275"+ 3"

|+ 35"+ 406"+ 45"+ 5"+ 55"+ 6.06"+ 6.5" |

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Lef, Refative to; |
" | Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




I Rule 1.3 Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops.

(1)  Notice. Except in emergencies, or as otherwise required by statute or these Rules,
at least seven (7) days, but no more than thirty (30) days public notice shall be
given of any public meeting, hearing or workshop of the Board. Public notice
shall be given by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the District
and in the county in which the District is located. “General circulation” means a
publication that is printed and published at least once a weck for the preceding
year, offering at least 25% of its words in the English language, qualifies as a
periodicals material for postal purposes in the county in which the District is
located, is for sale to the public generally, is available to the public generally for
the publication of official or other notices, and is customarily containing
information of a public character or of interest or of value to the residents or
owners of property in the county where published, or of interest or of value to the
general public. The annual meeting notice required to be published by Section
189.015 of the Florida Statutes, shall be published in a newspaper not of limited
subject matter, which is published at least five days a week, unless the only
newspaper in the county is published less than five days a week. Each Notice
shall state, as applicable:

(a) The date, time and place of the meeting, hearing or workshop;

(b) A brief description of the nature, subjects, and purposes of the meeting,
hearing, or workshop;

©) The District office address for the submission of requests for copies of the
agenda, as well as a contact name and telephone number for verbal
requests for copies of the agenda; and

(d The following or substantially similar language:~ “Pursuant to provisions
of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special
accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is asked
to advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the
meecting/hearing/workshop by contacting the District Manager at ()

. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact
| the Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770 or 1 (800) 955-8771, who
can aid you in contacting the District Office.”

| ()  The following or substantially similar language: “A person who decides to
appeal any decision made at the meetmg/heanng/workshop with respect to
any. matter considered. at,the, mgag el

person will need a record of the proceedmgs and that accordmgly, the
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is
made including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be
based.”

/ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
/| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

11 <




@

(€)

® The following or substantially similar language:- “The meeting [or hearing
or workshop] may be continued in progress without additional notice to a
time, date, and location stated on the record.”

Mistake. In the event that a meeting is held under the incorrect assumption that
notice required by law and these Rules has been given, the Board at its next
properly noticed meeting shall cure such defect by considering the agenda items
from the prior meeting individually and anew.

Agenda. The District Manager, under the guidance of District Counsel and the
Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, shall prepare a—netice-and-an agenda of the
meeting/hearing/workshop. The netiee-and-agenda and any meeting materials
available in an electronic format, excluding any confidential and any confidential
and exempt information. shall be available to the public at least seventy-two-{72)
hoursseven days before the meeting/hearing/workshop, except in an emergency.
Meeting materials shall be defined as. and limited to. the agenda. meeting
minutes. resolutions. and agreements of the District that District staff deems
necessary for Board approval. Inclusion of additional materials for Board
consideration other than those defined herein as “meeting materials” shall not
convert such materials into “meeting materials.” For good cause, the agenda may
be changed after it is first made available for distribution, and additional materials
may be added or provided under separate cover at the meeting. The requirement
of good cause shall be liberally construed to allow the District to efficiently
conduct business and to avoid the expenses associated with special meetings.

The District may, but is not required to, use the following format in preparing its
agenda for its regular meetings:

Call to order
Roll call
Public comment
Organizational matters
Review of minutes
Specific items of old business
Specific items of new business
Staff reports
(a) District Counsel
(b) District Engineer
(c) District Manager
1. Financial Report
<o 2. AppovalgeRxncidiiusemsn
Supervisor’s requests and comments
Public comment
Adjournment

12 &

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:

/| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




(4)  Minutes. The Secretary shall be responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes
of each meeting of the Board. Minutes shall be corrected and approved by the
Board at a subsequent meeting. The Secretary may work with other staff
members in preparing draft minutes for the Board’s consideration.

(5) Special Requests. Persons wishing to receive, by mail, notices or agendas of
meetings, may so advise the District Manager or Secretary at the District Office.
Such persons shall furnish a mailing address in writing and shall be required to
pre-pay the cost of the copying and postage.

(6)  Emergency Meetings. The Chairperson, or Vice-Chairperson if the Chairperson is
unavailable, upon consultation with the District Manager and District Counsel. if
available, may convene an emergency meeting of the Board without first having
complied with sections (1) and (3) of this Rule, to act on emergency matters that
may affect the public health, safety, or welfare. Whenever possible, the District
Manager shall make reasonable efforts to provide public notice and notify all
Board members of an emergency meeting twenty-four (24) hours in advance.
Reasonable efforts may include telephone notification. Notice of the emergency
meeting must be provided both before and after the meeting on the District’s
website, if it has one. Whenever an emergency meeting is called, the District
Manager shall be responsible for notifying at least one newspaper of general
circulation in the District. After an emergency meeting, the Board shall publish in
a newspaper of general circulation in the District, the time, date and place of the
emergency meeting, the reasons why an emergency meeting was necessary, and a
description of the action taken. Actions taken at an emergency meeting may be
ratified by the Board at a regularly noticed meeting subsequently held.

(7)  Public Comment. The Board shall set aside a reasonable amount of time at each
meeting for public comment and members of the public shall be permitted to
provide comment on any proposition before the Board. The portion of the
meeting generally reserved for public comment shall be identified in the agenda.
Policies governing public comment may be adopted by the Board in accordance
with Florida law.

(8)  Budget Hearing, Notice of hearing on the annual budget(s) shall be in accord with
Section 190.008 of the Florida Statutes. Once adopted in accord with Section
190.008 of the Florida Statutes, the annual budget(s) may be amended from time
to time by action of the Board. Approval of invoices by the Board in excess of
the funds allocated to a particular budgeted line item shall serve to amend the
budgeted line item.

B T -~ s

(9)  Public Hearings. Notice of required public hearings shall contain the information
required by applicable Florida law and by these Rules applicable to meeting
notices and shall be mailed and published as required by Florida law. The District
Manager shall ensure that all such notices, whether mailed or published, contain

the information required by Florida law and these Rules and are mailed and ( Formatted: Centered, Postion: Horizontal: Left, Relative to; |

| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

13 <



published as required by Florida law. Public hearings may be held during Board
meetings when the agenda includes such public hearing.

(10) Participation by Teleconference/Videoconference. District staff may participate
in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference. Board members may
also participate in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference if in the
good judgment of the Board extraordinary circumstances exist; provided however,
at least three Board members must be physically present at the meeting location to
establish a quorum. Such extraordinary circumstances shall be presumed when a
Board member participates by teleconference or videoconference, unless a
majority of the Board members physically present determines that extraordinary
circumstances do not exist.

(11) Board Authorization. The District has not adopted Robert’s Rules of Order. For
each agenda item, there shall be discussion permitted among the Board members
during the meeting. Unless such procedure is waived by the Board. Aapproval or
disapproval of resolutions and other proposed Board actions shall be in the form
of a motion by one Board member, a second by another Board member, and an
affirmative vote by the majority of the Board members present. Any Board
member, including the Chairperson, can make or second a motion.

(12) Continuances. Any meeting or public hearing of the Board may be continued
without re-notice or re-advertising provided that:

(a) The Board identifies on the record at the original meeting a reasonable
need for a continuance;

(b)  The continuance is to a specified date, time, and location publicly
announced at the original meeting; and

(¢)  The public notice for the original meeting states that the meeting may be
continued to a date and time and states that the date, time, and location of
any continuance shall be publicly announced at the original meeting and
posted at the District Office immediately following the original meeting.

(13) Attorney-Client Sessions. An Attorney-Client Session is permitted when the
District’s attorneys deem it necessary to meet in private with the Board to discuss
pending litigation to which the District is a party before a court or administrative
agency or as may be authorized by law. The District’s atterneysattorney must
request such session at a public meeting.— Prior to holding the Attorney-Client

e -SC85igN,. thesbistrictaustaiyereasonable. publienotice of the time and dag.of the

session and the names of the persons anticipated to attend the session. —The
session must commence at an open meeting in which the Chairperson or Vice-
Chairperson announces the commencement of the session, the estimated length of
the session, and the names of the persons who will be attending the session. The
discussion during the session is confined to settlement negotiations or strategy

14 <

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
ﬂColumn, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




related to litigation expenses or as may be authorized by law. Only the Board, the
District’s attorneys (including outside counsel), the District Manager, and the
court reporter may attend an Attorney-Client Session. During the session, no
votes may be taken and no final decisions concerning settlement can be made.
Upon the conclusion of the session, the public meeting is reopened, and the
Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson must announce that the session has concluded.
The session must be transcribed by a court-reporter and the transcript of the
session filed with the District Secretary within a reasonable time after the session.
The transcript shall not be available for public inspection until after the
conclusion of the litigation.

(14) _ Securitv and Firesafety Board Discussions. Portions of a meeting which relate to
or would reveal a security or firesafety system plan or portion thereof made .
confidential and exempt by section 119.071(3)(a). Florida Statutes. are exempt
from the public meeting requirements and other requirements of section 286.011.
Florida Statutes. and section 24(b). Article 1 of the State Constitution. Should the
Board wish to discuss such matters, members of the public shall be required to
leave the meeting room during such discussion. Any records of the Board’s
discussion of such matters. including recordings or minutes. shall be maintained
as confidential and exempt records in accordance with Florida law.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla, Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 189.069(2)(2)16. 190.006, 190.007, 190.008, 286.0105, 286.011, 286.,0113, 286.0114, Fla. Stat.

,J Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse

(1)  Imternal Controls. The District shall establish and maintain internal
controls designed to:

(a) Prevent and detect “fraud.” “waste” and “abuse” as those terms are
defined in section 11.45(1). Florida Statutes: and

(b) Promote and encourage compliance with applicable laws. rules
contracts, grant agreements. and best practices: and

(c) Support economical and efficient operations: and

(d) Ensure reliability of financial records and reports: and

(e) Safeguard assets.

(2) Adoption. The internal controls to prevent fraud. waste and abuse shall be
adopted and amended by the District in the same manner as District

policies.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15). Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 218.33(3), Fla. Stat.

! Formatted: Font: 12 pt ]
“ ‘\ Formatted: Heading 1, Left, Tab stops: Not at 0" + 0.5" +

1"+ 15"+ 2"+ 25"+ 3"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+ 5"+
5.5"4+ 6"+ 6.5°

e - R L e - B

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

16 <



R

Rule 2.0

(O]

@

€))

Rulemaking Proceedings.

Commencement of Proceedings. Proceedings held for adoption, amendment, or
repeal of a District rule shall be conducted according to these Rules. Rulemaking
proceedings shall be deemed to have been initiated upon publication of notice by
the District. A “rule” is a District statement of general applicability that
implements, interprets, or prescribes law or policy, or describes the procedure or
practice requirements of the District (“Rule™). Nothing herein shall be construed
as requiring the District to consider or adopt rules unless required by Chapter 190
of the Florida Statutes. Policies adopted by the District which do not consist of
rates, fees, rentals or other monetary charges may be, but are not required to be,
implemented through rulemaking proceedings.

Notice of Rule Development.

(a) Except when the intended action is the repeal of a Rule, the District shall
provide notice of the development of a proposed rule by publication of a
Notice of Rule Development in a newspaper of general circulation in the
District before providing notice of a proposed rule as required by section
(3) of this Rule. Consequently, the Notice of Rule Development shall be
published at least twenty-nine (29) days prior to the public hearing on the
proposed Rule. The Notice of Rule Development shall indicate the subject
area to be addressed by rule development, provide a short, plain
explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed rule, cite the specific
legal authority for the proposed rule, and include a statement of how a
person may promptly obtain, without cost, a copy of any preliminary draft,
if available.

(b)  All rules as drafted shall be consistent with Sections 120.54(1)(g) and
120.54(2)(b) of the Florida Statutes.

Notice of Proceedings and Proposed Rules.

(a) Prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule other than an
emergency rule, the District shall give notice of its intended action, setting
forth a short, plain explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed
action, a reference to the specific rulemaking authority pursuant to which
the rule is adopted, and a reference to the section or subsection of the
Florida Statutes being implemented, interpreted, or made specific. The
notice shall include a summary of the District’s statement of the estimated

PR =1 01 tsm nreparedshased on the factors set forgh in

. aLaR&LOST
Section 120.541(2) of the Florida Statutes s, and a statement that any person
who wishes to provide the District with a lower cost regulatory alternative
as provided by Section 120.541(1), must do so in writing within twenty-
one (21) days after publication of the notice. The notice shall additionally
include a statement that any affected person may request a public hearing

17 <

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative m:‘

§ "Column, Vertical: In [ine, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




@

®

-wmsCOnsidawhethgzathanublic interestisaemved adequately by the application pfthe..

by submitting a written request within twenty-one (21) days after the date
of publication of the notice. Except when intended action is the repeal of
a rule, the notice shall include a reference to both the date on which and
the place where the Notice of Rule Development required by section (2) of
this Rule appeared.

(b)  The notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
District and each county in which the District is located not less than
twenty-eight (28) days prior to the intended action. The proposed rule
shall be available for inspection and copying by the public at the time of
the publication of notice.

(¢)  The notice shall be mailed to all persons named in the proposed rule and to
all persons who, at least fourteen (14) days prior to such mailing, have
made requests of the District for advance notice of its rulemaking
proceedings. Any person may file a written request with the District
Manager to receive notice by mail of District proceedings to adopt,
amend, or repeal a rule. Such persons must furnish a mailing address and
may be requlred to pay the cost of copymg and mallmg Neﬁee—m’:l—theﬂ

Rule Development Workshops. Whenever requested in writing by any affected
person, the District must ¢ither conduct a rule development workshop prior to
proposing rules for adoption or the Chairperson must explain in writing why a
workshop is unnecessary. The District may initiate a rule development workshop
but is not required to do so.

Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking. All Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking proceedings
must contain the name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner, the
specific action requested, the specific reason for adoption, amendment, or repeal,
the date submitted, the text of the proposed rule, and the facts showing that the
petitioner is regulated by the District; or has a_substantial interest in the
rulemaking. Not later than sixty (60) calendar days following the date of filing a
petition, the Board shall initiate rulemaking proceedings or deny the petition with
a written statement of its reasons for the denial. If the petition is directed to an
existing policy that the District has not formally adopted as a rule, the District
may, in its discretion, notice and hold a public hearing on the petition to consider
the comments of the public directed to the policy, its scope and application, and to

policy on a case-by-case basis, as contrasted with its formal adoption as a rule.
However, this section shall not be construed as requiring the District to adopt a
rule to replace a policy.

18 <

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
‘ Column, Vertical: In llne, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

)



©®

)

@®

e~ R - i
Negotiated Rulemaking

Rulemaking Materials. After the publication of the notice referenced in section
(3) of this Rule, the Board shall make available for public inspection and shall
provide, upon request and payment of the cost of copies, the following materials:

(a) The text of the proposed rule, or any amendment or repeal of any existing
rules;

(b) A detailed written statement of the facts and circumstances justifying the
proposed rule;

©) A copy of the statement of estimated regulatory costs if required by
Section 120.541 of the Florida Statutes; and

(d)  The published notice.

Hearing. The District may, or, upon the written request of any affected person
received within twenty-one (21) days after the date of publication of the notice
described in section (3) of this Rule, shall, provide a public hearing for the
presentation of evidence, argument, and oral statements, within the reasonable
conditions and limitations imposed by the District to avoid duplication, irrelevant
comments, unnecessary delay, or disruption of the proceedings. The District shall
publish notice of the public hearing in a newspaper of general circulation within
the District either in the text of the notice described in section (3) of this Rule or in
a separate publication at least seven (7) days before the scheduled public hearing.
The notice shall specify the date, time, and location of the public hearing, and the
name, addréss, and telephone number of the District contact person who can
provide information about the public hearing. Written statements may be submitted
by any person prior to or at the public hearing. All timely submitted written
statements shall be considered by the District and made part of the rulemaking
record.

Emergency Rule Adoption. The Board may adopt an emergency rule if it finds
that immediate danger to the public health, safety, or welfare exists which
requires immediate action. Prior to the adoption of an emergency rule, the District
Manager shall make reasonable efforts to notify a newspaper of general
circulation in the District. Notice of emergency rules shall be published as soon as
possible in a newspaper of general circulation in the District. The District may
use any procedure which is fair under the circumstances in the adoption of an
emergency rule as long as it protects the public interest as determined by the
District and otherwise complies with these provisions.

SEE o - s
. The District may use negotiated

developing and adopting rules pursuant to Section 120.54(2)(d) of the Florida
Statutes, except that any notices required under Section 120.54(2)(d) of the
Florida Statutes, may be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the

county in which the District is located.

19 *

rulemaking in

i Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to; |
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




(10) Rulemaking Record. In all rulemaking proceedings, the District shall compile
and maintain a rulemaking record. The record shall include, if applicable:

()  The texts of the proposed rule and the adopted rule;

(b)  All notices given for a proposed rule;

(c) Any statement of estimated regulatory costs for the rule;

(d) A written summary of hearings, if any, on the proposed rule;

(e) All written comments received by the District and responses to those
written comments; and

® All notices and findings pertaining to an emergency rule.

(11)  Petitions to Challenge Existing Rules.

(a) Any person substantially affected by a rule may seck an administrative
determination of the invalidity of the rule on the ground that the rule is an
invalid exercise of the District’s authority.

(b)  The petition seeking an administrative determination must state with
particularity the provisions alleged to be invalid with sufficient
explanation of the facts or grounds for the alleged invalidity and facts
sufficient to show that the person challenging a rule is substantially
affected by it.

(¢)  The petition shall be filed with the District. Within 10 days after receiving
the petition, the Chairperson shall, if the petition complies with the
requirements of subsection (b) of this section, designate any member of
the Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel,
or other person as a hearing officer who shall conduct a hearing within 30
days thereafter, unless the petition is withdrawn or a continuance is
granted by agreement of the parties. The failure of the District to follow
the applicable rulemaking procedures or requirements in this Rule shall be
presumed to be material; however, the District may rebut this presumption
by showing that the substantial interests of the petitioner and the fairness
of the proceedings have not been impaired.

i o= e R e =
Within 30 days after the hearing, the hearing officer shall render a
decision and state the reasons therefor in writing.

(e)  Hearings held under this section shall be de novo in nature. The petitioner
has a burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the

\

{ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
_ Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

20 /



(12)

R e~ - — B e

existing rule is an invalid exercise of District authority as to the objections
raised. The hearing officer may:

1 Administer oaths and affirmations;
(ii) Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence;

(iii) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing
matters;

(iv)  Enter orders; and
) Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment.

® The petitioner and the District shall be adverse parties. Other substantially
affected persons may join the proceedings as intervenors on appropriate
terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings.

Variances and Waivers. A “variance” means a decision by the District to grant a
modification to all or part of the literal requirements of a rule to a person who is
subject to the rule. A “waiver” means a decision by the District not to apply all or
part of a rule to a person who is subject to the rule. Variances and waivers from
District rules may be granted subject to the following:

(a) Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person subject to the rule
demonstrates that the purpose of the underlying statute will be or has been
achieved by other means by the person, and when application of the rule
would create a substantial hardship or would violate principles of fairness.
For purposes of this section, "substantial hardship"” means a demonstrated
economic, technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the person
requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes of this section, "principles
of fairness" are violated when the literal application of a rule affects a
particular person in a manner significantly different from the way it affects
other similarly situated persons who are subject to the rule.

(b) A person who is subject to regulation by a District Rule may file a petition
with the District, requesting a variance or waiver from the District’s Rule.
Each petition shall specify:

@) The rule from which a variance or waiver is requested;

(ii)  The type of action requested;

(iii)  The specific facts that would justify a waiver or variance for the
petitioner; and

|/ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
/| Column, Vertical: In fine, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

21 .



(iv)  The reason why the variance or the waiver requested would serve
the purposes of the underlying statute.

(c) The District shall review the petition and may request only that
information needed to clarify the petition or to answer new questions
raised by or directly related to the petition. If the petitioner asserts that any
request for additional information is not authorized by law or by Rule of
the District, the District shall proceed, at the petitioner’s written request, to
process the petition.

(d)  The Board shall grant or deny a petition for variance or waivers and shall
announce such disposition at a publicly held meeting of the Board, within
shety-(60ninety (90) days after receipt of the original petition, the last item
of timely requested additional material, or the petitioner's written request
to finish processing the petition. The District’s statement granting or
denying the petition shall contain a statement of the relevant facts and
reasons supporting the District's action.

(13) Rates, Fees. Rentals and Other Charves. All rates, fees, rentals, or other charges
shall be subject to rulemaking proceedings. Policies adopted by the District
which do not consist of rates, fees, rentals or other charges may be, but are not
required to be, implemented through rulemaking proceedings.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.035, Fla. Stat,
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.035(2), Fla. Stat.

-

22 *

{ Formatted: Ijieading 1, Left, Tab stops: Not at -0.75" +
05"+ 0"+ 0.5"+ 1"+ 15"+ 2"+ 25"+ 2,75"+ 3"
|+ 35"+ 406"+ 45"+ 5"+ 55"+ 6.06"+ 6.5

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal; Left, Relative to: |
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




Rule 3.0 Competitive Purchase.

(1)  Purpose and Scope. In order to comply with Sections 190.033(1) through (3),
287.055 and 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, the following provisions shall apply
to the purchase of Professional Services, insurance, construction contracts,
design-build services, goods, supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and
maintenance services.

(2)  Board Authorization. Except in cases of an Emergency Purchase, a competitive
purchase governed by these Rules shall only be undertaken after authorization by
the Board.

(3)  Definitions.

(a) “Competitive Solicitation” means a formal, advertised procurement
process, other than an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, or
Invitation to Negotiate, approved by the Board to purchase commodities
and/or services which affords vendors fair treatment in the competition for
award of a District purchase contract.

(b)  “Continuing Contract” means a contract for Professional Services entered
into in accordance with Section 287.055 of the Florida Statutes, between
the District and a firm, whereby the firm provides Professional Services to
the District for projects in which the costs do not exceed eaetwo million
dollars ($32,000,000), for a study activity when the fee for such
Professional Services to the District does not exceed fiftytwo hundred
thousand dollars ($56200,000), or for work of a specified nature as
outlined in the contract with the District, with no time limitation except
that the contract must provide a termination clause (for example, a
contract for general District engineering services). Firms providing
Professional Services under Continuing Contracts shall not be required to
bid against one another.

(¢)  “Contractual Service” means the rendering by a contractor of its time and
cffort rather than the furnishing of specific commodities. The term applies
only to those services rendered by individuals and firms who are
independent contractors. Contractual Services do not include auditing
services, Maintenance Services, or Professional Services as defined in
Section 287.055(2)(a) of the Florida Statutes, and these Rules.
Contractual Services also do not include any contract for the furnishing of

o —— D OT-QL.mategialsfor the construction, rengyation, 1epair, madifica

& demolition of any facility, building, portion of building, utility, park,
parking lot, or structure or other improvement to real property entered into
pursuant to Chapter 255 of the Florida Statutes, and Rules 3.5 or 3.6.

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
“ | Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

23 “



(CY

©

®

®

()

“Design-Build Contract” means a single contract with a Design-Build
Firm for the design and construction of a public construction project.

“Design-Build Firm” means a partnership, corporation or other legal entity
that:

) Is certified under Section 489.119 of the Florida Statutes, to
engage in contracting through a certified or registered general
contractor or a certified or registered building contractor as the
qualifying agent; or

(ii) Is certified under Section 471.023 of the Florida Statutes, to
practice or to offer to practice engineering; certified under Section
481.219 of the Florida Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice
architecture; or certified under Section 481.319 of the Florida
Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice landscape architecture.

“Design Criteria Package” means concise, performance-oriented drawings
or specifications for a public construction project. The purpose of the
Design Criteria Package is to furnish sufficient information to permit
Design-Build Firms to prepare a bid or a response to the District’s Request
for Proposals, or to permit the District to enter into a negotiated Design-
Build Contract. The Design Criteria Package must specify performance-
based criteria for the public construction project, including the legal
description of the site, survey information conceming the site, interior
space requirements, material quality standards, schematic layouts and
conceptual design criteria of the project, cost or budget estimates, design
and construction schedules, site development requirements, provisions for
utilities, stormwater retention and disposal, and parking requirements
applicable to the project. Design Criteria Packages shall require firms to
submit information regarding the qualifications, availability, and past
work of the firms, including the partners and members thereof.

“Design Criteria Professional” means a firm who holds a current
certificate of registration under Chapter 481 of the Florida Statutes, to
practice architecture or landscape architecture, or a firm who holds a
current certificate as a registered engineer under Chapter 471 of the
Florida Statutes, to practice engineering, and who is employed by or under
contract to the District to provide professional architect services,
landscape architect services, or engineering services in connection with
ation of the Design Criferia Package <.z s

“Emergency Purchase” means a purchase necessitated by a sudden
unexpected turn of events (for example, acts of God, riot, fires, floods,
hurricanes, accidents, or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of
the Board in the normal conduct of its business), where the Board finds

24 <

/| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




®

@

)

O

(m)

that the delay incident to competitive purchase would be detrimental to the
interests of the District. This includes, but is not limited to, instances
where the time to competitively award the project will jeopardize the
funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the project, or
will create an undue hardship on the public health, safety, or welfare.

“Invitation to Bid” is a written solicitation for sealed bids with the title,
date, and hour of the public bid opening designated specifically and
defining the commodity or service involved. It includes printed
instructions prescribing conditions for bidding, qualification, evaluation
criteria, and provides for a manual signature of an authorized
representative. It may include one or more bid alternates.

“Invitation to Negotiate” means a written solicitation for competitive
sealed replies to select one or more vendors with which to commence
negotiations for the procurement of commaodities or services.

“Negotiate” means to conduct legitimate, arm’s length discussions and
conferences to reach an agreement on a term or price.

“Professional Services” means those services within the scope of the
practice of architecture, professional engineering, landscape architecture,
or registered surveying and mapping, as defined by the laws of Florida, or
those services performed by any architect, professional engincer,
landscape architect, or registered surveyor and mapper, in connection with
the firm's or individual's professional employment or practice.

“Proposal (or Reply or Response) Most Advantageous to the District”
means, as determined in the sole discretion of the Board, the proposal,
reply, or response that is:

@) Submitted by a person or firm capable and qualified in all respects
to perform fully the contract requirements, who has the integrity
and reliability to assure good faith performance;

(i)  The most responsive to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation as determined by the Board;
and

(iii)  Fora cost to the District deemed by the Board to be reasonable.

e I R e MO T s R S
“Purchase” means acquisition by sale, rent, lease, lease/purchase, or
installment sale. It does not include transfer, sale, or exchange of goods,
supplies, or materials between the District and any federal, state, regional
or local governmental entity or political subdivision of the State of

Florida.

25 «

— — —
/| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margtn, Width: Auto




(©

®)

“Request for Proposals” or “RFP” is a written solicitation for sealed
proposals with the title, date, and hour of the public opening designated
and requiring the manual signature of an authorized representative. It may
provide general information, applicable laws and rules, statement of work,
functional or general specifications, qualifications, proposal instructions,
work detail analysis, and evaluation criteria as necessary.

“Responsive and Responsible Bidder” means an entity or individual that
has submitted a bid that conforms in all material respects to the Invitation
to Bid and has the capability in all respects to fully perform the contract
requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good faith
performance. “Responsive and Responsible Vendor” means an entity or
individual that has submitted a proposal, reply, or response that conforms
in all material respects to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and has the capability in all respects
to fully perform the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability
that will assure good faith performance. In determining whether an entity
or individual is a Responsive and Responsible Bidder (or Vendor), the
District may consider, in addition to factors described in the Invitation to
Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, the following:

) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed
by the entity/individual;

(ii)  The past performance of the entity/individual for the District and in
other professional employment;

(i)  The willingness of the entity/individual to meet time and budget
requirements;

(iv)  The geographic location of the entity’s/individual’s headquarters
or office in relation to the project;

(v) The recent, current, and projected workloads of the
entity/individual;

(vi)  The volume of work previously awarded to the entity/individual;

i) . Whether.gficecost components of the bid..ge. px
appropriately balanced; and

(viii) Whether the entity/individual is a certified minority business
enterprise.

26 <

{ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: ]
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




(@)  “Responsive Bid,” “Responsive Proposal,” “Responsive Reply,” and
“Responsive Response™ all mean a bid, proposal, reply, or response which
conforms in all material respects to the specifications and conditions in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation document and these Rules, and the cost
components of which, if any, are appropriately balanced. A bid, proposal,
reply or response is not responsive if the person or firm submitting it fails
to meet any material requirement relating to the qualifications, financial
stability, or licensing of the bidder.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.033, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

«

27 <

lr?ormatted: Heading 2, Left, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", '
Tab stops: Notat -0.25" + 0"+ 0.5+ 1°+ 15"+ 2"+
125"+ 3"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+ 5"+ 55"

| Formatted: Centered, Posttion: Horizontal: Lef, Relative to:
| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




| Rule 3.1 Procedure Under Fhethe Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act.

(1)  Scope. The following procedures are adopted for the selection of firms or
individuals to provide Professional Services exceeding the thresholds herein
described, for the negotiation of such contracts, and to provide for protest of
actions of the Board under this Rule. As used in this Rule, “Project” means that
fixed capital outlay study or planning activity when basic construction cost is
estimated by the District to exceed the threshold amount provided in Section
287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FIVE, or for a planning study
activity when the fee for Professional Services is estimated by the District to
exceed the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO,
as such categories may be amended or adjusted from time to time.

(2)  Qualifying Procedures. In order to be eligible to provide Professional Services to

the District, a consultant must, at the time of receipt of the firm’s qualification
submittal:

(a) Hold all required applicable federal-licenses-in-good-standingifany;
———{—Hoeld-allrequired-applicable-state professional licenses in good standing;

(b) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing. if any;

(c) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized to do
business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the
Florida Statutes, if the consultant is a corporation; and

(d) Meet any qualification requirements set forth in the District’s Request for
Quatifications.

Evidence of compliance with this Rule may be submitted with the qualifications,
if requested by the District. In addition, evidence of compliance must be
submitted any time requested by the District.

(3)  Public Announcement. Except in cases of valid public emergencies as certified
by the Board, the District shall announce each occasion when Professional
Services are required for a Project or a Continuing Contract by publishing a notice
providing a general description of the Project, or the nature of the Continuing
Contract, and the method for interested consultants to apply for consideration.
The notice shall appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the
o neJYiSGgEANd in such other placegeas the District:dggms: ApREgREAEesTNe NOLCE comme. . - —
must allow at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of qualifications from the date
of publlcatlon The District may maintain lists of consultants interested in
receiving such notices. These consultants are encouraged to submit annually

statements of quahﬁcatlons and perfoxmance data Geﬁsulmtsdwh&pfeﬂde-theﬁ

! Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
Column, Vertical: In Ime, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




@)

netices—by-maik-The District shall make reasonable efforts to provide copies of
any notices to such consultants. but the failure to do so shall not zive such
consultants any bid protest or other rights or otherwise disqualify any otherwise
valid procurement process. The Board has the right to reject any and all

qualifications, and such reservation shall be included in the published notice.
Consultants not receiving a contract award shall not be entitled to recover from
the District any costs of qualification package preparation or submittal.

Competitive Selection.

(@)

(©

The Board shall review and evaluate the data submitted in response to the
notice described in section (3) of this Rule regarding qualifications and
performance ability, as well as any statements of qualifications on file.
The Board shall conduct discussions with, and may require public
presentation by consultants regarding their qualifications, approach to the
Project, and ability to furnish the required services. The Board shall then
select and list the consultants, in order of preference, deemed to be the
most highly capable and qualified to perform the required Professional
Services, after considering these and other appropriate criteria:

@ The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed
by each consultant;

(i)  Whether a consultant is a certified minority business enterprise;
(iii)  Each consultant’s past performance;

(iv) The willingness of each consultant to meet time and budget
requirements;

) The geographic location of each consultant's headquarters, office
and personnel in relation to the project;

(vi)  The recent, current, and projected workloads of each consultant;
and

(vii)) The volume of work previously awarded to each consultant by the
District.

Nothing in these Rules shall prevent the District from evaluating and

eyentually selgeting.. a.consulianG it Josiptianmtiiee

qualification packages, including packages indicating a des:re not to
provide Professional Services on a given Project, are received.

If the selection process is administered by any person or committee other
than the full Board, the selection made will be presented to the full Board

29 <

[ Formatted: Centered,iPosiﬁon: Horizontal:iLe&, Relative to: )

Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




@

with a recommendation that competitive negotiations be instituted with the
selected firms in order of preference listed.

Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the rejection of
some or all qualification packages, shall be provided in writing to all
consultants by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight
delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the
Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those
Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s ranking
decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set
forth in Rule 3.11.

) Competitive Negotiation.

@

®)

©

@

After the Board has authorized the beginning of competitive negotiations,
the District may begin such negotiations with the firm listed as most
qualified to perform the required Professional Services at a rate or amount
of compensation which the Board determines is fair, competitive, and
reasonable.

In negotiating a lump-sum or cost-plus-a-fixed-fee professional contract
for more than the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 of the
Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR, the firm receiving the award
shall be required to execute a truth-in-negotiation certificate stating that
“"wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are
accurate, complete and current at the time of contracting." In addition,
any professional service contract under which such a certificate is
required, shall contain a provision that "the original contract price and any
additions thereto, shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by
which the Board determines the contract price was increased due to
inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit
costs."

Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with
the firm determined to be the most qualified at a price deemed by the
District to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then negotiations with that
firm shall be terminated and the District shall immediately begin
negotiations with the second most qualified firm. If a satisfactory
agreement with the second firm cannot be reached, those negotiations
shall:he .termingted. andenegotiaf ith.the third .mastegualified firm
shall be undertaken.

Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with
one of the top three (3) ranked consultants, additional firms shall be
selected by the District, in order of their competence and qualifications.

30 S

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




Negotiations shall continue, beginning with the first-named firm on the
list, until an agreement is reached or the list of firms is exhausted.

©6) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

(7)  Continuing Contract. Nothing in this Rule shall prohibit a Continuing Contract
between a consultant and the District.

(8)  Emergencv Purchase. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these Rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred
or is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

- —4’;rmatted: Heading 2, Left, Tab stops: Notat 0" + 0.5" + |

31 <

1"+ 15"+ 2"+ 25+ 325"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+ 5"
|+ 55"+ 6"

{ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
" | Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




Rule 3.2 Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection.

In order to comply with the requirements of Section 218.391 of the Florida Statutes, the
following procedures are outlined for selection of firms or individuals to provide
Auditing Services and for the negotiation of such contracts. For audits required under
Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes but not meeting the thresholds of Chapter 218 of the
Florida Statutes. the District need not follow these procedures but may proceed with the
selection of a firm or individual to provide Auditing Services and for the negotiation of
such contracts in the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the District.

(€)) Definitions.

(a) "Auditing Services" means those services within the scope of the practice
of a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of the
Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with
government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of
Accountancy.

®) "Committee" means the auditauditor selection committee appointed by the
Board as described in section (2) of this Rule.

(2)  Establishment of AwmditAuditor Selection Committee. Prior to a public
announcement under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are required,
the Board shall establish an auditauditor selection committee (“Committee”™), the
primary purpose of which is to assist the Board in selecting an auditor to conduct
the annual financial audit required by Section 218.39 of the Florida Statutes. The
Committee sheuldghall include at least three individuals, seme-orallat least one of
whem-maywhich must also serve—as—membersbe a member of the Board. The
establishment and selection of the Committee must be conducted at a publicly
noticed and held meeting of the Board. The Chairperson of the Committee must
be a member of the Board. An emplovee. a chief executive officer. or a chief
financial officer of the District may not serve as a member of the Committee:
provided however such individual may serve the Committee in an advisory

capacity.

(3)  Establishment of Minimum Qualifications and Evaluation Criteria. Prior to a
public announcement under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are
required, the Committee shall meet at a publicly noticed meeting to establish
minimum qualifications and factors to use for the evaluation of Auditing Services
to be provided by a certified public accounting firm hcensed under Chapter 473 of

sssgebe.. Florida _Statutes, and.. qualifiede.to., sibsaccoudance. . guithe..
govcmment auditing standards as adopted by the Florlda Board of Accountancy.

(a) Minimum Qualifications. In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a
firm must, at all relevant times including the time of receipt of the
proposal by the District:

32 <

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
/| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




i) Hold all required applicable federalstate professional licenses in
good standing-ifesy;

(i)  Hold all required applicable state—professienalfederal licenses in
good standing, if any;

(ili) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be
authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a
corporation; and

(iv) Meet any pre-qualification requirements established by the
Committee and set forth in the RFP or other specifications.

If requested in the RFP or other specifications, evidence of compliance
with the minimum qualifications as established by the Committee must be
submitted with the proposal.

(b)  Evaluation Criteria. The factors established for the evaluation of Auditing
Services by the Committee shall include, but are not limited to:

() Ability of personnel;

(i)  Experience;

(iiiy  Uaderstandingofseepe-ofworlks
Gv)—Ability to furnish the required services; and

(viv) Such other factors as may be determined by the Committee to be
applicable to its particular requirements.

The Committee may also choose to consider compensation as a factor. If the
Committee establishes compensation as one of the factors, compensation shall not
be the sole or predominant factor used to evaluate proposals.

Public Announcement. After identifying the factors to be used in evaluating the
proposals for Auditing Services as set forth in section (3) of this Rule, the
Committee shall publicly announce the opportunity to provide Auditing Services.

Such public annguncemenisshalldgelnde. lsgehude abgabdaseciption.of theguditand how. .

interested firms can apply for consideration and obtain the RFP. The notice shall
appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the District and the
county in which the District is located. The public announcement shall allow for
at least seven (7) days for the submission of proposals.

33 <

/| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: i
~ | Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




5

©

™

Request for Proposals. The Committee shall provide interested firms with a
Request for Proposals (“RFP”). The RFP shall provide information on how
proposals are to be evaluated and such other information the Committee
determines is necessary for the firm to prepare a proposal. The RFP shall state the
time and place for submitting proposals.

Committee’s Evaluation of Proposals and Recommendation. The Committee
shall meet at a publicly held meeting that is publicly noticed for a reasonable time

in advance of the meeting to evaluate all qualified proposals and may, as part of
the evaluation, require that each interested firm provide a public presentation
where the Committee may conduct discussions with the firm, and where the firm
may present information, regarding the firm’s qualifications. At the public
meeting, the Committee shall rank and recommend in order of preference no
fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the
required services after considering the factors established pursuant to subsection
(3)(b) of this Rule. If fewer than three firms respond to the RFP or if no firms
respond to the RFP, the Committee shall recommend such firm as it deems to be
the most highly qualified. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may
recommend that any and all proposals be rejected.

Board Selection of Auditor.

(a)  Where compensation was not selected as a factor used in evaluating the
proposals, the Board shall negotiate with the firm ranked first and inquire
of that firm as to the basis of compensation. If the Board is unable to
negotiate a satisfactory agreement with the first ranked firm at a price
deemed by the Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then
negotiations with that firm shall be terminated and the Board shall
immediately begin negotiations with the second ranked firm. If a
satisfactory agreement with the second ranked firm cannot be reached,
those negotiations shall be terminated and negotiations with the third
ranked firm shall be undertaken. The Board may reopen formal
negotiations with any one of the three top-ranked firms, but it may not
negotiate with more than one firm at a time. If the Board is unable to
negotiate a satisfactory agreement with any of the selected firms, the
Committee shall recommend additional firms in order of the firms’
respective competence and qualifications. Negotiations shall continue,
beginning with the first-named firm on the list, until an agreement is
reached or the list of firms is exhausted.

(b) Where gompensgiion. waseiiasiedsas 4 factor _in, evaluating the
proposals, the Board shall select the hlghest-ranked qualified firm-_or

document in its public records the reason for not selecting the highest-
ranked qualified firm.

34 </

IFormathed Centered Position: Hoﬂzontal Left, Relative to: |
Column, Vertical: In Ilne, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




(c) In negotiations with firms under this Rule, the Board may allow the
District Manager, District Counsel, or other designee to conduct
negotiations on its behalf.

(d)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may reject any or all proposals.
The Board shall not consider any proposal, or enter into any contract for
Auditing Services, unless the proposed agreed-upon compensation is
reasonable to satisfy the requirements of Section 218.39 of the Florida
Statutes, and the needs of the District.

(8)  Contract. Any agreement reached under this Rule shall be evidenced by a written
contract, which may take the form of an engagement letter signed and executed by
both parties. The written contract shall include all provisions and conditions of
the procurement of such services and shall include, at a minimum, the following:

(@) A provision specifying the services to be provided and fees or other
compensation for such services;

(b) A provision requiring that invoices for fees or other compensation be
submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of
the contract;

(c) A provision setting forth deadlines for the auditor to submit a preliminary
draft audit report to the District for review and to submit a final audit
report no later than FalytJune 30 of the fiscal year that follows the fiscal
year for which the audit is being conducted;

(d) A provision specifying the contract period, including renewals, and
conditions under which the contract may be terminated or renewed. The
maximum contract period including renewals shall be five (5) vears. A
renewal may be done without the use of the auditor selection procedures
provided in this Rule; but must be in writing.

(¢)  Provisions required by law that require the auditor to comply with public
records laws.

(9)  Notice of Award. Once a negotiated agreement with a firm or individual is
reached, or the Board authorizes the execution of an agreement with a firm where
compensation was a factor in the evaluation of proposals, notice of the intent to
award, including the rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in
e WIItINGE0. alaronoscRsidanilcd  States. Maillehand  delivery, facsimile,. OL. oo
overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of
the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or
wording to that effect. Protests regarding the award of contracts under this Rule

Formatted: Cenl:er;:d, Position: Horlzontzl:rLeﬂ, Relative to: 1
| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

35 <



shall be as provided for in Rule 3.11. No proposer shall be entitled to recover any
costs of proposal preparation or submittal from the District.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 218.33, 218.391, Fla. Stat.

“——{ Formatted: Heading 2, Left, Indent: Left: 0", First line; 0",
Tab stops: Not at -0.25" + 0"+ 0.5"+ 1"+ 15"+ 2"+
25"+ 3"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+ 5"+ 55

Tt A — R

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: ]
I_Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: A_uhg

36 <



| Rule 3.3

¢y

@

Purchase of Insurance.

Scope. The purchases of life, health, accident, hospitalization, legal expense, or
annuity insurance, or all of any kinds of such insurance for the officers and
employees of the District, and for health, accident, hospitalization, and legal
expenses upon a group insurance plan by the District, shall be governed by this
Rule. This Rule does not apply to the purchase of any other type of insurance by
the District, including but not limited to liability insurance, property insurance,
and directors and officers insurance. Nothing in this Rule shall require the District
to purchase insurance.

Procedure. For a purchase of insurance within the scope of these Rules, the
following procedure shall be followed:

(a)  The Board shall cause to be prepared a Notice of Invitation to Bid.
(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District. The notice shall allow

at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of bids.

(©) The District may maintain a list of persons mterested in recelvmg notices
ofInwtatlonstoBld Persens—wheo-pro ame-and-add: th

Dlstnct shall make reasonable efforts to prov1de cogles of any notlces to
such persons. but the failure to do so shall not give such consultants any
bid protest or other rights or otherwise disqualify any otherwise valid

procurement process.
(d)  Bids shall be opened at the time and place noted in the Invitation to Bid.

(e) If only one (1) response to an Invitation is received, the District may
proceed with the purchase. If no response to an Invitation to Bid is
received, the District may take whatever steps are reasonably necessary in
order to proceed with the purchase.

® The Board has the right to reject any and all bids and such reservations
shall be included in all solicitations and advertisements.

(g)  Simultaneously with the review of the submitted bids, the District may
undertake negotiations with those companies that have submitted
regspnable.and. timelyhids. aadsigsfhis.opinion. of thgdistrict, are_fully
qualified and capable of meeting all services and requirements. Bid
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the specifications and
criteria contained in the Invitation to Bid; in addition, the total cost to the
District, the cost, if any, to the District officers, employees, or their
dependents, the geographic location of the company’s headquarters and

37 <

[ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to; |

/ LColumn, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Wldth Auto




offices in relation to the District, and the ability of the company to
guarantee premium stability may be considered. A contract to purchase
insurance shall be awarded to that company whose response to the
Invitation to Bid best meets the overall needs of the District, its officers,
employees, and/or dependents.

(h)  Notice of the intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, shall
be provided in writing to all bidders by United States Mail, by hand
delivery, or by overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the
following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed
in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of
proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the
District’s procurement of insurance under this Rule shall be in accordance
with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat,
Law Implemented: § 112.08, Fla. Stat.

* " Formatted: Heading 2, Tab stops: Notat -0.25" + 0" +
05"+ 1"+ 15"+ 2"+ 25"+ 3"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+
{5+ 55"
e e e - — S R =

{ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
| Column, Verﬁcal: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




Rule 3.4 Pre-qualification

(1)  Scope. In its discretion, the District may undertake a pre-qualification process in
accordance with this Rule for vendors to provide construction services, goods,
supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and maintenance services.

(2)  Procedure. When the District seeks to pre-qualify vendors, the following
procedures shall apply:

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared a Request for Qualifications.

{(b)  For construction services exceeding the thresholds described in Section
255.20 of the Florida Statutes, the Board must advertise the proposed pre-
qualification criteria and procedures and allow at least seven (7) days
notice of the public hearing for comments on such pre-qualification
criteria and procedures. At such public hearing, potential vendors may
object to such pre-qualification criteria and procedures. Following such
public hearing, the Board shall formally adopt pre-qualification criteria
and procedures prior to the advertisement of the Request for Qualifications
for construction services.

(¢)  The Request for Qualifications shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of qualifications for goods, supplies and materials,
Contractual Services, maintenance services, and construction services
under two hundred fifty thousand dollars (8250,000). The notice shall
allow at least twenty-one (21) days for submittal of qualifications for
construction services estimated to cost over two hundred fifty thousand
dollars ($250,000) and thirty (30) days for construction services estimated
to cost over five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000).

(d)  The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Requests for Qualifications. The District shall make a good faith effort
to provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any pre-qualification
determination or confract awarded in accordance with these Rules and
shall not be a basis for a protest of any pre-qualification determination or

e R wﬂ‘r% - — —- . =

(e) If the District has pre-qualified vendors for a particular category of
purchase, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been
pre-qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies or

39 ‘

‘l

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: ]
Column, Vertiqal: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




®

(®

()

responses in response to the applicable Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

In order to be eligible to submit qualifications, a firm or individual must,
at the time of receipt of the qualifications:

(i) Hold #heall required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any;

(iti) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be
authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation;
and

(iv)  Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Request for Qualifications.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the
qualifications if required by the District. Failure to submit evidence of
compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
qualifications.

Qualifications shall be presented to the Board, or a committee appointed
by the Board, for evaluation in accordance with the Request for
Qualifications and this Rule. Minor variations in the qualifications may be
waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does
not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.

All vendors determined by the District to meet the pre-qualification
requirements shall be pre-qualified. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the requirements contained in a Request for
Qualifications, discussions may be conducted with qualified vendors.
Vendors shall be accorded fair treatment prior to the submittal date with
respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of qualifications.
For construction services, any contractor pre-qualified and considered
eligible by the Department of Transportation to bid to perform the type of
work the project entails shall be presumed to be qualified to perform the

The Board shall have the right to reject all qualifications if there are not
enough to be competitive or if rejection is determined to be in the best
interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled to recover any costs of
qualification preparation or submittal from the District.

40 .

=~ —_— —EE— e oneREareeg e il

[ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




@ 0

Notice of intent to pre-qualify, including rejection of some or all<

qualifications, shall be provided in writing to all vendors by United States Mail,
electronic mail. hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service. The
notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the
time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver
of proceedings under those Rules,” or wording to that effect. Protests of the
District’s pre-qualification decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with
the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11; provided however, protests related to the
pre-qualification criteria and procedures for construction services shall be
resolved in accordance with section (2)(b) of this Rule and Section 255.20(1)(b)
of the Florida Statutes.

(3) Suspension. Revocation. or Denial of Qualification

(a) The District. for good cause. may deny. suspend. or revoke a prequalified

vendor’s pre-qualified status. A suspension. revocation, or denial for good

cause_shall prohibit the vendor from bidding on anv District construction
contfract for which qualification is required. shall constitute a determination of
non-responsibility to bid on any other District construction or maintenance

contract, and shall prohibit the vendor from acting as a material supplier or

subcontractor on any District contract or project during the period of
suspension. revocation. or denial. Good cause shall include the following:

i.

One of the circumstances specified under Section 337.16(2). Fla. Stat..

ii.

iii.

has occurred.

Affiliated contractors submitted more than one proposal for the same
work. In this event the pre-gualified status of all of the affiliated
bidders will be revoked. suspended. or denied. All bids of affiliated

bidders will be rejected.

The vendor made or submitted false. deceptive. or fraudulent

iv.

statements. certifications. or materials in anv claim for pavment or any
information required by any District contract.

The vendor or its affiliate defaulted on any contract or a contract
surety assumed control of financial responsibility for any contract of
the vendor.

vi.

The vendor s quahﬁcatlon to b1d is s;pended, revoked. or denied by

public or semi-public entity.

The vendor failed to complv with contract or warranty requirements or
failed to follow District direction in the performance of a contract.

41 <

 Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", Space After: 0 pt, No bullets |
or numbering

— I'Formaned: Indent: Left: 1%, Tab stops: 1.5", Left + Not at |
05"+ 1"

ub;ect of a c1v11 enforcement groceedmu or settlement involving a

4 J, Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: 'l
" | Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




vii. The vendor failed to timelv furnish all contract documents required by
the contract specifications, special provisions. or by any state or
federal statutes or regulations. If the vendor fails to furnish any of the
subject contract documents by the expiration of the period of
suspension. revocation. or denial set forth above. the vendor’s pre-
qualified status shall remain suspended, revoked. or denied until the
documents are furnished.

viii, The vendor failed to notify the District within 10 davs of the vendor,

or any of its affiliates. being declared in default or otherwise not
completing work on a contract or being suspended from gualification
to bid or denied gualification to bid by any other public or semi-public

agency.

ix. The vendor did not pay its subcontractors or suppliers in a timely
manner or in compliance with contract documents.

x. The vendor has demonstrated instances of poor or unsatisfactory
performance. deficient management resulting in project delay. poor
quality workmanship. a history of payment of liquidated damaces.

untimely completion of projects. uncooperative attitude, contract
litigation, inflated claims or defaults.

xi. _An affiliate of the vendor has previously been determined by the
District to be non-responsible. and the specified period of suspension.

revocation. denial, or non-responsibility remains in effect.

xii. The vendor or affiliate(s) has been convicted of a contract crime.

1. The term “contract crime” means any violation of state or
federal antitrust laws with respect to a public contract or any
violation of anv state or federal law involving fraud, briberv.
collusion. conspiracy. or material misrepresentation with
respect to a public contract.

2. The term “convicted” or “conviction” means a finding of puilt
or a conviction of a contract crime, with or without an
adjundication of guilt, in anv federal or state trial court of record
as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of

guilty or nolo contendere.

revocation. except when a prime contractor’s bid has used prices of a

subcontractor who becomes disqualified after the bid. but before the request
for authorization to sublet is presented.

a2 ¥4

/| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: LeRt, Relative
Eolymn, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

h?}




(c) The District shall inform the vendor in writing of its intent to denv. suspend.
or revoke its pre-qualified status and inform the vendor of its right to a
hearing, the procedure which must be followed, and the applicable time limits.
If a hearing is requested within 10 days after the receipt of the notice of intent
the hearing shall be held within 30 days after receipt by the District of the
request for the hearing. The decision shall be issued within 15 days after the
hearing.

(d)_Such suspension or revocation shall not affect the vendor’s obligations under
any preexisting contract.

(e) In the case of contract crimes. the vendor’s pre-gualified status under this

Rule shall be revoked indefinitely. For all violations of Rule 3.4(3)(a) other
than for the vendor’s conviction for contract crimes. the revocation, denial, or

suspension of a vendor’s pre-qualified status under this Rule shall be for a
specific period of time based on the seriousness of the deficiency.

Examples of factors affecting the seriousness of a deficiency are:

i.Impacts on project schedule. cost. or quality of work:

ii. Unsafe conditions allowed to exist:

iii. Complaints from the public:

iv. Delay or interference with the bidding process:

v. The potential for repetition:

vi. Integrity of the public contracting process:

vii. Effect on the health, safety. and welfare of the public.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.033, 255.0525, 255.20, Fla. Stat.

[ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto |

43 <



Rule 3.5 Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build. __—{ Formatted: Heading 2 Char, Font: 10 pt, Not Bold

(1)  Scope. All contracts for the construction or improvement of any building,
structure, or other public construction works authorized by Chapter 190 of the
Florida Statutes, the costs of which are estimated by the District in accordance
with generally accepted cost accounting principles to be in excess of the threshold
amount for applicability of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as that amount
may be indexed or amended from time to time, shall be let under the terms of
these Rules and the procedures of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as the
same may be amended from time to time. A project shall not be divided solely to
avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

(2)  Procedure. When a purchase of construction services is within the scope of this
Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

(b)  Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District and in the county in which
the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount of the bid
bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least twenty-one (21)
days for submittal of sealed bids, proposals, replies, or responses, unless
the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter period of time is
appropriate. Any project projected to cost more than five hundred
thousand dollars ($500,000) must be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior
to the date for submittal of bids, proposals, replics, or responses. If the
Board has previously pre-qualified contractors pursuant to Rule 3.4 and
determined that only the contractors that have been pre-qualified will be
permitted to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses, the Notice of
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation need not be published. Instead, the Notice of
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation shall be sent to the pre-qualified contractors by
United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service.

(c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to

: vide. writtengaatice, by electronic mail., United,.Stafes : ;
dellvery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to

the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a

person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in

accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any

contract award. Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |

Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

44 «



@

(©

5. sxedicludgadhe. price, shall be publigly.openadsat. aggestin i

If the District has pre-qualified providers of construction services, then, at
the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses to
Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or
Tesponses:

@) Hold #heall required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any;

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be
authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the bidder is a corporation;
and

(iv)  Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any violation of
federal labor or employment tax laws regarding subjects sueh-asincluding
but not limited to. reemploviment assistance. safety, tax withholding,
worker’s compensation, unemployment tax, social security and Medicare
tax, wage or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may be
considered ineligible by the District to submit a bid, response, or proposal
for a District project.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply, or response, if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses, or the portions of which that

accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district representative
is present. The name of each bidder and the price submitted in the bid
shall be announced at such meeting; and shall be made available upon
request. Minutes should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the
District. Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be evaluated in

45 .

N . — Aren e e

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: ]
< | Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




(g

()

®

@

accordance with the respective Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals,
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and these Rules.
Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies, or responses may be
waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does
not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.
Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be corrected by the Board.
Bids and proposals may not be modified or supplemented after opening;
provided however, additional information may be requested and/or
provided to evidence compliance, make non-material modifications,
clarifications, or supplementations, and as otherwise permitted by Florida
law.

The lowest Responsive Bid submitted by a Responsive and Responsible
Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid shall be accepted. In relation to
a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or
Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is
most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions
may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and
responses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No contractor shall be
entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, response, or reply
preparation or submittal from the District.

The Board may require potential contractors to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids,
proposals, replies, or responses, shall be provided in writing to all
contractors by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight

dellvery serv1ce The notice shall include the following statement:

rotest. withip.the time prescribed in Ryle 3.11 . ofthe o5

2l
Rules of the Dlsmct shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those

Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of
construction services under this Rule shall be in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

46 -

Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |

J



3

@

%

(6)

(k)  If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses
are received, the District may purchase construction services or may reject
the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of competitiveness. If
no Responswe B1d Proposal Reply, or Response is received, the District

g 7B derto-proceed with the
procurement of constructlon services, in the manner the Board determines
is in the best interests of the District. which steps-may include but is not
limited to a direct purchase of the construction services without further
competitive selection processes.

Sole Source: Government. Construction services that are only available from a
single source are exempt from this Rule. Construction services provided by
governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule. This Rule shall not apply to
the purchase of construction services, which may include goods, supplies, or
materials, that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government contract
that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local government
in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of these Rules.
A contract for construction services is exempt from this Rule if state or federal
law prescribes with whom the District must contract or if the rate of payment is
established during the appropriation process.

Contracts: Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board Meeting.

Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when:

(a)  The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public
facility;

(b)  The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the
time required to competitively award the project after the funds become
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent;

(c)  The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has
abandoned the project or the District has terminated the

(d)  The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section
286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board
that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own
services, employees, and equipment.

47 «

FCQNITACE . Qs — — R N - e

| Formatted: Centered, Posidon: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla, Stat.

Rule 3.6

M

@

Construction Contracts, Design-Build.

Scope.

The District may utilize Design-Build Contracts for any public

construction project for which the Board determines that use of such contract is in
the best interest of the District. When letting a Design-Build Contract, the District
shall use the following procedure:

Procedure.

(@

(®)

©

The District shall utilize a Design Criteria Professional meeting the
requirements of Section 287.055(2)(k) of the Florida Statutes, when
developing a Design Criteria Package, evaluating the proposals and
qualifications submitted by Design-Build Firms, and determining
compliance of the project construction with the Design Criteria Package.
The Design Criteria Professional may be an employee of the District, may
be the District Engineer selected by the District pursuant to Section
287.055 of the Florida Statutes, or may be retained pursuant to Rule 3.1.
The Design Criteria Professional is not eligible to render services under a
Design-Build Contract executed pursuant to the Design Criteria Package.

A Design Criteria Package for the construction project shall be prepared
and sealed by the Design Criteria Professional. If the project utilizes
existing plans, the Design Criteria Professional shall create a Design
Criteria Package by supplementing the plans with project specific
requirements, if any.

The Board may either choose to award the Design-Build Contract pursuant
to the competitive proposal selection process set forth in Section
287.055(9) of the Florida Statutes, or pursuant to the qualifications—based
selection process pursuant to Rule 3.1.

i) Qualifications-Based Selection. If the process set forth in Rule 3.1
is utilized, subsequent to competitive negotiations, a guaranteed
maximum price and guaranteed completion date shall be
established.

(ii))  Competitive Proposal-Based Selection. If the competitive proposal
selection process is utilized, the Board, in consultatlon with the

o Criteria Pfofessional, $Hall establfgR thi
and procedures for the evaluation of Design-Build Proposals based
on price, technical, and design aspects of the project, weighted for
the project. After a Design Criteria Package and the standards and
procedures for evaluation of proposals have been developed,

48 <

—— Formatted: Heading 2, Left, Tab stops: Notat 0" + 0.5" + |

1"+ 325"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+ 5"+ 55"+ 6"

O s el g =~ =

f Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: ]
| Colurn, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




competitive proposals from qualified firms shall be solicited
pursuant to the design criteria by the following procedure:

1.

A Request for Proposals shall be advertised at least once in
a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which
the District is located. The notice shall allow at least
twenty-one (21) days for submittal of sealed proposals,
unless the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter
period of time is appropriate. Any project projected to cost
more than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) must
be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior to the date for
submittal of proposals.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in
receiving notices of Requests for Proposals. The District
shall make a good faith effort to provide written notice, by
electronic mail, United States Mail, hand delivery, or
facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However,
failure of a person to receive the notice shall not invalidate
any contract awarded in accordance with this Rule and
shall not be a basis for a protest of any contract award.

In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a firm must, at
the time of receipt of the proposals:

a. Hold the required applicable state professional
licenses in good standing, as defined by Section
287.055(2)(h) of the Florida Statutes;

b. Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good
standing, if any;

c Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter
or be authorized to do business in the State of
Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the
Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a corporation;

d. Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set
forth in the Request for Proposals and Design

Criterig. Package e - omme  —omiigamns -

Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any

violation of federal labor or employment tax laws regarding
subjects sueb-asincluding but not limited to reemploviment
assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s compensation,

49 o/

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
| Elgmn, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage
or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may
be considered ineligible by the District to submit a bid,
response, or proposal for a District project.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be
submitted with the proposal if required by the District.
Failure to submit evidence of compliance when required
may be grounds for rejection of the proposal.

The proposals, or the portions of which that include the
price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in
accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district
representative is present. The name of each bidder and the
price submitted in the bid shall be announced at such
meeting; and shall be made available upon request.
Minutes should be taken at the meeting and maintained by
the District. In consultation with the Design Criteria
Professional, the Board shall evaluate the proposals
received based on evaluation criteria and procedures
established prior to the solicitation of proposals, including
but not limited to qualifications, availability, and past work
of the firms and the partners and members thereof. The
Board shall then select no fewer than three (3) Design-
Build Firms as the most qualified.

The Board shall have the right to reject all proposals if] the
proposals are too high, or rejection is determined to be in
the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled
to recover any costs of proposal preparation or submittal
from the District.

If less than three (3) prepesalsResponsive Proposals are
received, the District may purchase design-build services or

may reject the proposals for lack of competitiveness. If no
proposalsResponsive Proposals are received, the District
may

proceed with the procurement of design-build services_in
the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of
the District, which steps-may include but is not limited to a
direct purchasg.of theadesien-hulldsggiuices without fugther

competitive selection processes.

Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the
rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in
writing to all consultants by United States Mail, hand

| Formatted: text, Font color: Dark Blue ]

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Lef, Relative to: |
" | Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

50 <




10.
esssesusmgaEpliance of the detailedaworking, drawingszand.

delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service. The
notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to
file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the
Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of
proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect.
Protests of the District’s rankings under this Rule shall be
in accordance with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

The Board shall negotiate a contract with the firm ranking
the highest based on the evaluation standards and shall
establish a price which the Board determines is fair,
competitive and reasonable. Should the Board be unable to
negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to
be the most qualified at a price considered by the Board to
be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations with that
firm must be terminated. The Board shall then undertake
negotiations with the second most qualified firm, based on
the ranking by the evaluation standards.  Feiling
accordShould the Board be unable to negotiate a
satisfactory contract with the— firm considered to be the
second most qualified firm;-the-Beard-at a price considered
by the Board to be fair, competitive. and reasonable
negotiations with that firm must terminate-negetiations—be
terminated. The Board shall then undertake negotiations
with the third most qualified firm. Should the Board be
unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm
considered to be the third most gualified at a price
considered by the Board to be fair, competitive. and
reasonable. negotiations with that firm must be terminated.
Should the Board be unable to negotiate a satisfactory
contract with any of the selected firms, the Board shall
select additional firms in order of their rankings based on
the evaluation standards and continue negotiations until an
agreement is reached or the list of firms is exhausted.

After the Board contracts with a firm, the firm shall bring
to the Board for approval, detailed working drawings of the
project.

The Design Criteria Professional shall evaluate the

construction with the Design Criteria Package; and shali
provide the Board with a report of the same.

51 <

[ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Leﬂ, Relative to:
| Column, Vertical: In fine, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




3) Contracts: Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

(4)  Emergency Purchase. The Board may, in case of public emergency, declare an
emergency and immediately proceed with negotiations with the best qualified
Design-Build Firm available at the time. The fact that an Emergency Purchase
has occurred shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

(5)  Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when:

(@  The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public
facility;

(b)  The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the
time required to competitively award the project after the funds become
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent;

(c)  The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has
abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contractor; or

d) The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section
286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board
that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own
services, employees, and equipment.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla, Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla, Stat.

Pa—

52 <

{Formatted: Heading 2, Tab stops: Notat -0.25" + 0" + |
05"+ 1"+ L5+ 2% 4 25"+ 3"+ 35"+ 4°+ 45"+
5+ 5.5

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




Rule 3.7

)

@

(€)

Payment and Performance Bonds.

Scope. This Rule shall apply to contracts for the construction of a public
building, for the prosecution and completion of a public work, or for repairs upon
a public building or public work; and shall be construed in addition to terms
prescribed by any other Rule that may also apply to such contracts.

Required Bond. Upon entering into a contract for any of the services described in
section (1) of this Rule in excess of $200,000, the Board should require that the
contractor, before commencing the work, execute and record a payment and
performance bond in an amount equal to the contract price. Notwithstanding the
terms of the contract or any other law, the District may not make payment to the
contractor until the contractor has provided to the District a certified copy of the
recorded bond.

Discretionary Bond. At the discretion of the Board, upon entering into a contract
for any of the services described in section (1) of this Rule for an amount not
exceeding $200,000, the contractor may be exempted from executing a payment
and performance bond.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 255,05, Fla. Stat.

53

05"+ 1"+ 15"+ 2"+ 25"+ 3"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+

(Fonnaﬂed: Heading 2, Tab stops: Not at -0.25" + 0" +
5"+ 55"

| S —S

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

]




Rule 3.8

O

@

Goods, Supplies, and Materials.

Purpose and Scope. All purchases of goods, supplies, or materials exceeding the
amount provided in Section 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY
FOUR, shall be purchased under the terms of this Rule. Contracts for purchases
of “goods, supplies, and materials” do not include printing, insurance, advertising,
or legal notices. A contract involving goods, supplies, or materials plus
maintenance services may, in the discretion of the Board, be treated as a contract
for maintenance services. However, a purchase shall not be divided solely in
order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure. When a purchase of goods, supplies, or materials is within the scope
of this Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(a8)  The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount
of the bid bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

(¢)  The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any
contract award.

()] If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of goods, supplies, and materials,
then, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-
qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

(e) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or

TEeSpoONses. o S e . * - —

(i) Hold theall required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

54 <

/| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto )




®

4]

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607
of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply or response if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Any firm or individual whose principal place of business is outside the
State of Florida must also submit a written opinion of an attorney at law
licensed to practice law in that foreign state, as to the preferences, if any or
none, granted by the law of that foreign state to business entities whose
principal places of business are in that forcign state, in the letting of any or
all public contracts. Failure to submit such a written opinion or
submission of a false or misleading written opinion may be grounds for
rejection of the bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time
and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation
to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, and this Rule. Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies,
or responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver
of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of
a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be
corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be modified or
supplemented after opening; provided however, additional information
may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance, make non-
material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and as
otherwise permitted by Florida law.

The lowest Responsive Bid, after taking into account the preferences
provided for in this subsection, submitted by a Responsive and
Responsible=Biddseein. respoasadaaan. InvitationsioaBid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negonate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be
accepted. If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and
Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a
foreign state which does not grant a preference in competitive purchase to
businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the

55 <

[

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horlzontal: Left, Relative to; |

Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




L))

)

lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of
business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference of five (5)
percent. If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and
Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a
foreign state which grants a preference in competitive purchase to
businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the
lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of
business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference equal to
the preference granted by such foreign state.

To assure full understanding of the responsiveness to the solicitation
requirements contained in an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals,
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions may be
conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and
responses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be
entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response
preparation or submittal from the District.

The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids,
proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors
by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery
service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file
a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the
District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or
wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of goods,
supplies, and materials under this Rule shall be in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

If less than three (3) bids—pfepesels—rephesResponswe B1ds Proposals.
.gplies, or.xespensesResponses argakecel ;

goods, supplies, or materials, or may reject the bids, proposals rephes or

responses for a lack of competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal,

Reply, or Response is received, the District may iake—whatever—steps
feasenably—aeeessefy—m—efdef—te—proceed with the procurement of goods,

supplies, and materials, in the manner the Board determines is in the best

56 <

Formatted: Cent;_red, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




interests of the District. which steps-may include but is not limited to a
direct purchase of the goods, supplies, and materials without further
competitive selection processes.

(3)  Goods. Supplies. and Materials included in a Construction Contract Awarded
Pursuant to Rule 3.5 or 3.6. There may be occasions where the District has
undergone the competitive purchase of construction services which contract may
include the provision of goods, supplies, or materials. In that instance, the
District may approve a change order to the contract and directly purchase the
goods, supplies, and materials. Such purchase of goods, supplics, and materials
deducted from a competitively purchased construction contract shall be exempt
from this Rule.

(4)  Exemption. Goods, supplies, and materials that are only available from a single
source are exempt from this Rule. Goods, supplies, and materials provided by
governmental agencics are exempt from this Rule. A contract for goods, supplies,
or materials is exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom
the District must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the
appropriation process. This Rule shall not apply to the purchase of goods,
supplies or materials that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government
contract that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local
government in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of
these Rules.

(5) Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of goods, supplies, and/or materials subject
to this Rule may be renewed for a-period-that-mey not-exceed-three{3)-years—or

a maximum period of

five (5) years.

(6)  Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190,011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 189.053, 190.033, 287.017, 287.084, Fla. Stat.

* | Formatted: Heading 2, Tab stops: Notat 0° + 0.5 + 1" +
15"+ 2"+ 25"+ 3"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+ 5"+ 55"+
6"+ 6.5"

/| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
/| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




| Rule 3.9 Maintenance Services.

(1)  Scope. All contracts for maintenance of any District facility or project shall be set
under the terms of this Rule if the cost exceeds the amount provided in Section
287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR. A contract involving
goods, supplies, and materials plus maintenance services may, in the discretion of
the Board, be treated as a contract for maintenance services. However, a purchase
shall not be divided solely in order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

(2)  Procedure. When a purchase of maintenance services is within the scope of this
Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(@)

(b)

©

@

O]

e ——

The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount
of the bid bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any
contract award.

If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of maintenance services, then, at
the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or
responses:

(i) Hold_theall.requizsdsannlicablgstiaic.rofessiona

standing;

ligenses in good

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

58 -

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:

/| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




®

(®

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607
of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply, or response if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time
and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation
to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, and these Rules. Minor variations in the bids, proposals,
replies, and responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor
if waiver of the variation docs not create a competitive advantage or
disadvantage of a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of
pricing may be corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be
modified or supplemented after opening; provided however, additional
information may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance,
make non-material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and
as otherwise permitted by Florida law.

The lowest Responsive Bid submitted in response to an Invitation to Bid
by a Responsive and Responsible Bidder shall be accepted. In relation to
a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate or Competitive
Solicitation the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or
Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is
most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions
may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, or
responses.

e R s <o Rt - B -

The Board shall have the right to reject

responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is

determined to be in the best interest of the District. No Vendor shall be

59 <

all bids, proposals, replies, or

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: ]
| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response
preparation or submittal from the District.

() The Board may require bidders and proposers to fumish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

()] Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids,
proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors
by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery
service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a
protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District
shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to
that effect. Protests of the District’s procurement of maintenance services
under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in
Rule 3.11.

(k)  If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses
are received, the District may purchase the maintenance services or may
reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of
competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response 1s
received, the District may
erderto-proceed with the procurement of maintenance services, in_the
manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the District. which
steps—may include_but is not limited to a direct purchase of the
maintenance services without further competitive selection processes.

(3) Exemptions. Maintenance services that are only available from a single source
are exempt from this Rule. Maintenance services provided by govemmental
agencies are exempt from this Rule. A contract for maintenance services is
exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom the District
must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the appropriation
process.

(4)  Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of maintenance services subJect to this Rule
may be renewed for a-p ed-th ; h

eﬂgaeal-eea&aet—-wh&ehewr—peﬂed-ls—leager— a maximum genod of ﬁve 15[ vears.

(5) Contracts: Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the

= - Songactesia.complaideiiblic records oS .. - - PE——

(6)  Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

: 1 [ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
Specific Authority: §§190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.033, Fla. Stat, / Column, Vertical: In Iin'e, Relative to: Margin, Wﬂl;dth: Auto

60 “



Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.033, 287.017, Fla. Stat.

“—— Formatted: Heading 2, Left, Tab stops: Not at 0" + 0.5" +
T 1"+ 15"+ 2"+ 25"+ 3"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+ 5"+
55"+ 6"+ 6.5"

.

y { Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:
/| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

61




Rule 3.10 Contractual Services.

(1)  Exemption from Competitive Purchase. Pursuant to Section 190.033(3) of the
Florida Statutes, Contractual Services shall not be subject to competitive
purchasing requirements. If an agreement is predominantly for Contractual
Services, but also includes maintenance services or the purchase of goods and
services, the contract shall not be subject to competitive purchasing requirements.
Regardless of whether an advertisement or solicitation for Contractual Services is
identified as an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate,
or Competitive Solicitation, no rights or remedies under these Rules, including
but not limited to protest rights, are conferred on persons, firms, or vendors
proposing to provide Contractual Services to the District.

2) Contracts: Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract for
Contractual Services shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla, Stat,
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, Fla. Stat.

[ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

62 <



___—{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Not Bold

O ] 0y s =

Sl e

63

_—| Formatted: Font: 9 pt, Bold

Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: ]
/| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




Rule 3.11 Protests
with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5. 3.6. 3.8. and 3.9.

The resolution of any protests with respect to proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6,
3.8, and 3.9 shall be in accordance with this Rule.

(1)  Filing.

(a) With respect to a protest regarding qualifications, specifications,
documentation, or other requirements contained in a Request for
Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive
Solicitation issued by the District, the notice of protest shall be filed in
writing within seventy-two (72) calendar hours (excluding Saturdays,
Sundays, and state holidays) after the first advertisement of the Request
for Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive
Solicitation. A formal protest setting forth with particularity the facts and
law upon which the protest is based shall be filed within seven (7)
calendar days (including Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after the
initial notice of protest was filed. For purposes of this Rule, wherever
applicable, filing will be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon
receipt by the District. Failure to file a notice of protest shall constitute a
waiver of all rights to protest the District’s intended decision. Failure to
file a formal written protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest
proceedings and shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings.

(b)  Except for those situations covered by subsection (1)(a) of this Rule, any
firm or person who is affected adversely by a District’s ranking or
intended award under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9 and
desires to contest the District’s ranking or intended award, shall file with
the District a written notice of protest within seventy-two (72) calendar
hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after receipt of
the notice of the District’s ranking or intended award. A formal protest
setting forth with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is
based shall be filed within seven (7) calendar days (including Saturdays,
Sundays, and state holidays) after the initial notice of protest was filed.
For purposes of this Rule, wherever applicable, filing will be perfected
and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the District. Failure to file a
notice of protest shall constitute a waiver of all rights to protest the
District’s ranking or intended award. Failure to file a formal written
protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest proceedings and

'Lformatﬁed: Indent: Left: 0"

EE R E;bul!_wi!y terminate g protest proceedings. — S
st i (c) If the requirement for the posting of a protest

bond and the amount of the protest bond. which may be expressed by a
percentace of the contract to be awarded or a set amount. is disclosed in
the District’s competitive solicitation documents for a particular purchase

under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9, the-Beard-mayrequire

64 <

! Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
. Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




@

(€))

@)

any person who files a notice of protest toemust post athe protest bond-in
t-he&gamount ta r-of-theunteipated-contractamount-that-isthe
subject—of the protest bond shall be determined by District staff after
consultation with the Board and within the limits, if any, imposed bv
Florida law. In the event the protest is successful, the protest bond shall
be refunded to the protestor. In the event the protest is unsuccessful, the
protest bond shall be applied towards the District’s costs, expenses, and
attorney’s fees associated with hearing and defending the protest. In the
event the protest is settled by mutual agreement of the parties, the protest
bond shall be distributed as agreed to by the District and protestor.

o-1%-of the-anticing o o

(d) The District does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or
facsimile transmission. Filings are only accepted during normal business
hours.

Contract Execution. Upon receipt of a notice of protest which has been timely
filed, the District shall not execute the contract under protest until the subject of
the protest is resolved. However, if the District sets forth in writing particular
facts and circumstances showing that delay incident to protest proceedings will
jeopardize the funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the
project, or will create an immediate and serious danger to the public health,
safety, or welfare, the contract may be executed.

Informal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest does not involve a
disputed issue of material fact, the Board may, but is not obligated to, schedule an
informal proceeding to consider the protest. Such informal proceeding shall be at
a time and place determined by the Board. Notice of such proceeding shall be
sent via facsimile, United States Mail, or hand delivery to the protestor and any
substantially affected persons or parties not less than three (3) calendar days prior
to such informal proceeding. Within thirty (30) calendar days following the
informal proceeding, the Board shall issue a written decision setting forth the
factual, legal, and policy grounds for its decision.

Formal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest involves disputed issues of
material fact or if the Board elects not to use the informal proceeding process
provided for in section (3) of this Rule, the District shall schedule a formal
hearing to resolve the protest. The Chairperson shall designate any member of the
Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel, or other
person as a hearing officer to conduct the hearing. The hearing officer may:

(b)  Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence;

©) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing matters;

65 4

= m.—.ﬁ,.mwiste[,mﬂm:agdgﬁnnatinns: = e TEES L e aeeRSSens TR RS B

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
| Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto




(d)  Enter orders; and
(e) Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment.

The hearing officer shall, within thirty (30) days after the hearing or receipt of the
hearing transcript, whichever is later, file a recommended order which shall
include a caption, time and place of hearing, appearances entered at the hearing,
statement of the issues, findings of fact and conclusions of law, separately stated,
and a recommendation for final District action. The District shall allow each
party fifteen (15) days in which to submit written exceptions to the recommended
order. The District shall issue a final order within sixty (60) days after the filing
of the recommended order.

(5) Intervenors. Other substantially affected persons may join the proceedings as
intervenors on appropriate terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings.

(6)  Reijection of all Qualifications. Bids. Proposals. Replies and Responses after

Receipt of Notice of Protest. If the Board determines there was a violation of law,
defect, or an irregularity in the competitive solicitation process. the Bids
Proposals. Replies. and Responses are too high, or if the Board determines it is _—{ Formatted: text |
otherwise in the District’s best interest, the Board may reject all qualifications,

bids, proposals, replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation

process anew. If the Board decides to reject all qualifications, bids, proposals,

replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation process anew, any

pending protests shall automatically terminate.

(7)  Settlement. Nothing herein shall preclude the settlement of any protest under this
Rule at any time.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 190.033, Fla. Stat.

<— | Formatted: Heading 1, Tab stops: Notat 0"+ 0.5" + 1"+ ]
15"+ 2"+ 25"+ 3.25"+ 35"+ 4"+ 45"+ 5"+
55"+ 6
. i e ———— e e - T

| Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to:a
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

66 “



Rule 4.0 Effective Date.

These Rules shall be effective , 2648,20_ . except that no election of
officers required by these Rules shall be required until after the next regular election for the
Board.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.

{ Formatted: Centered, Position: Horizontal: Left, Relative to: |
Column, Vertical: In line, Relative to: Margin, Width: Auto

67 b



SECTION IX



This item will be provided under

separate cover



SECTION X



This item will be provided under

separate cover



SECTION Xl



SECTION C



SECTION 1



Poinciana West
Community Development District

Summary of Check Register
July 1, 2019 to September 11, 2019

[ Fund Date Check No.'s Amount |
General Fund 7/18/19 1580-1585 $ 15,901.89
7/23/19 1586 $ 744 .50
7/30/19 1587 $ 2,500.00
8/6/19 1588-1589 $ 5,871.16
8/12/19 1590 $ 5,327.85
8/13/19 1591 $ 14,276.45
8/20/19 1592-1594 $ 9,656.54
8/26/19 1595 $ 295.00
9/4/19 1596-1597 $ 14,291.16
9/9/19 1598 $ 5,168.06
9/10/19 1599-1600 $ 3,632.00
9/11/19 1601 $ 413.14
$ 78,077.75
Payroll July 2019
Charles Case III 50058 $ 184.70
Peggy Gregory 50059 $ 184.70
Roy LaRue 50060 $ 184.70
Shirley Bzdewka 50061 $ 184.70
$ 738.80
[ $ 78,816.55 l

—— - RGeS~ == L - e e = R - o



AP300R I YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER

*** CHECK DATES 07/11/2019 - 09/11/2019 nER POINCIANA WEST - GENERAL FUND
; BANK A GENERAL FUND
i
CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE . oo =o» EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME
DATE DATE INVOICE | YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS

7/18/19 00022 6/26/19 346064 201906 310-51300-32200
FY18 AUDIT SERVICES
BERGER TOOMBS ELAM GAINES & FRANK

STATUS

RUN 9/11/19

AMOUNT

3,415.00

PAGE 1

7/18/19 00005 7/15/19 1007414 201907 320-53800-47100
MOSQUITO MGMT SERV JUL19
CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO

7/18/19 00020 7/15/19 4385 201907 320-53800-47000
AQUATIC; MAINT. SRVC JUL19
! CLARKE AQUATIC SERVICES, INC

7/18/19 00007 7/01/19 4024-R 201907 320-53800-46200
LAWN MAINTENANCE JUL19
FLORALAWN 2, LLC

7/18/19 00016 7/03/19 2139664 , 201905 310-51300-31100
INTERL 4ENG SRVCS-JUN19
GAI CONSULTANTS, INC

7/18/19 00010 6/28/19 L060GOIX 201906 310-51300-48000

7/05/19
07/17-2ND PRINT
THE LEDGER

7/30/19 00029 7/30/19 1336 ‘201907 320-53800-48100
50% MOB.DEP-EROSION RPR
! LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT ORLANDO
8/06/19 00007 8/01/19 4117 T 201908 320-53800-46200
LAWN MATINTENANCE AUG19
FLORALAWN 2, LLC

8/06/19 00016 7/30/19 2140792 201907 310-51300-31100
INTERIM ENG. SRVCS-JULLY9
GAI CONSULTANTS, INC

8/12/19 00001 8/01/19 47 201908 310-51300-34000
MANAGEMENT FEES-AUGL9
8/01/19 47 201908 310-51300-35200

INFORMATION TECH-AUG19
POIW POIN WEST CDD TVISCARRA

s T

3,750.00
125.00



ﬁ
AP300R
**+* CHECK DATES 07/11/2019 - 09/11/2019 *kk

CHECK VEND#
DATE

«ee.. INVOICE.....
DATE INVOICE

8/01/19 47
DISSEMINATION FEE-AUGLY
8/01/19 47
OFFICE SUPPLIES
8/01/19 47
POSTAGE:
8/01/19 47
COPIES
8/01/19 48
FIELD MFNAGEMENT-AUGIS

.+ EXPENSED TO...
YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS

201908 310-51300-
201908 310-51300-

YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER

POINCIANA WEST - GENERAL FUND
BANK A GENERAL FUND

VENDOR NAME

31300
51000

j 2019508 310-51300-42000
201908 310-51300-42500
201908 320-53800-~

12000
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES-CF

RUN

STATUS

9/11/19

AMOUNT

416.67
18.46
42.04

142.35

833.33

PAGE 2

«s..CHECK.....

AMOUNT

5,327.85

#

001590

8/07/19
8/07/19

PROP. Al
4651671 !
PROP. APPRAISER FEE

PRAISER FEE

1008361
MOSQUI

201908 320-53800~
MGMT SERV AUG19

4652 i.201908 320-53800-
AQUATIClMAINT. SRVC AUG1

4651671A&201908 300-13100-

10200

201908 310-51300-49100

POLK COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER
47100

CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO
47000

9

CLARKE AQUATIC SERVICES, INC

11,177.52
3,098.93

109283

1201907 310-51300-31500

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS

GEN.COQFSEL/MTHLY MTG JUL
e R |

2141783
INTERIM ENG.

201908 310-51300-31100
SRVCS-AUG19

GAI CONSULTANTS, INC

19-0685 , 201906 320-53800-48100

MOBILIZE/POND SKIMMER RPR

ALL TERRAIN TRACTOR SERVICE, INC.

4212
LAWN MAINTENANCE SEP19

9/01/19
9/01/19

49
MANAGEMENT FEES-SEP19
49
INFORMAFION TECH-SEP19

9/09/19 00001

e =

201909 310~-51300-

201909 320-53800-46200

FLORALAWN 2, LLC

35200

POIW POIN WEST CDD TVISCARRA

3,750.00
125.00

- e e e e e e o e e e o m o e e e e o e e mm e = m e o m e e e em mm e e W o e = em = m e

201909 310-51300-34000



AP300R

*%%* CHECK DATES 07/11/2019 - 09/11/201

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE..... .. .EXPENSED TO...

DATE DATE
9/01/19
9/01/19
9/01/19
9/01/19
9/01/19

k% POINCIANA WEST - GENERAL FUND
BANK A GENERAL FUND

VENDOR NAME
INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS

49 1201909 310-51300-31300
DISSEMINATION FEE-SEP19

201909 310-51300-51000
OFFICE SUPPLIES

49 ;201909 310-51300-42000
POSTAGE]

49 201909 310-51300-42500

COPIES ¢
50 }lghzqowos 320-53800-12000
FIELD MANAGEMENT-SEP19

? GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES-CF

>
o

gEAR—TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER

RUN 9/11/19 PAGE 3

AMOUNT «+0..CHECK.....
AMOUNT #

416.67

.51

8.50

34.05

833.33
5,168.06 001598

9/10/19 00002 9/17/18
10/25/18
12/21/18

102657
PROJECT
103492

1201808 300-13100-10000

CONSTRUCTION AUG.

2201809 300-13100-10000

PROJECTY CONSTRUCTION SEPT

104464 |f 201811 300-13100-10000

PROJECT: CONSTRUCTION NOV.

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS

2,890.50

245.00

496.50
3,632.00 001599

9/10/19 00030 9/10/19
9/10/19

09102019!201909 310-51300-11000
REPLC CHE#50058 MTG.07/19
09102019; 201909 310~51300-11000
REPLC CHE#50058 MTG.07/19
i CHARLES W. CASE III

9/11/19 00013 9/11/19

09112019 201909 300-20700-10000
FY19 DS ASSESS (APPR FEE)
POINCIANA WEST CDD C/O USBANK

TOTAL FOR BANK A

TOTAL FOR REGISTER

i POIW POIN WEST CDD TVISCARRA

78,077.75
78,077.75



e Berger, Toombs, Elam,
‘:d Gaines & Frank

Certified Public Accoumtants  PL

Fort Pierce, Florida 34950

772/461-6120 // 461-1155
FAX: 772/468-9278

o200 . ﬁE@EEVE
JUL 0 9 7819

POINCIANA WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
1412 S. NARCOOSSEE RD
ST. CLOUD, FL 34771

Invoice No. 346064
Date 06/26/2019
Client No. 20897

Services rendered in connection with the audit of the Basic Financial Statements
as of and for the year ended September 30,2018,

Total Invoice Amount $__3.41500

"2
F‘l\% Auudt_\'“ ) IZ(-L\,')

1-3lo ~613-33 3

s v R - P — e R v - R < ==~

Please enter dlipnt number on your check.
Finance charges are calculated on balances over 30 days old at an annual percentage rate of 18%.

Fort Pierce / Stuart

Member AICPA Member AICPA Division For CPA Firms Member FICPA

Private Companies Practice Section



INVOICE

& clarke

Page: 1(1)
www.clarke.com
TOLL-FREE: 800-323-5727
PHONE: 630-894-2000

Invoice #: 001007414
Invoice Date: 07/15/19
Customer #: P07800 Terms: Net 30 Days
Customer PO#  NA Due Date: 08/14/19
B
| Poinciana West Community Dev. Dist. E @E i3 W] E
L 9145 Narcoossee Road .
L Suite A208 JUL 8 TS
Orlando, FL 32827-5768
T
0 George Flint BY: e e
Agreement no 1000002502 Consultant Pete Deglomine - Salesman
[ Description Total

CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO MANAGEMENT SERVICE

W9's can be found on our website at www.clarke.com

Service for July 2019

5
HO&?}‘;t‘U nS“Ak SQ(V Jl&\\c‘ Order total 1,983.33
1-336-535-47)
g /

1

S

v A N f’\l*J?V

Clarke Environmental Mosquito Management, Inc. is a Clarke Company

** We accept ACH Payments = n 1,983.33

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes unless a valid exemption certificate Is Emailed to: accountsreceivable@clarke.com or faxed to: 630-872-7439

Helping make communities around the worid more livable, safe and comfortable.



Page: 1(1)

www.darke.com

TOLL-FREE: 800-323-5727

INVOICE PHONE: B30-834-2000
AR Emall' accountsrecelvabl arke.com,

&o clarke

Invoice # 000004385
Invoice Date: 07/15/19

Customer # 088096 Terms: Net 30 Days
Customer PO £ Due Date: 08/14/1S

8

| Poinciana West Community Dev. Dist.

L 9145 Narcoossee Rd. E(@EEVE

Orlando, FL 32827-5768

o

George Flint BY: .

Agreement no 1000002499 Consultant Pete Deglomine - Salesman

[' Description Toml—]

CLARKE AQUATIC MAINTENANCE SERVICES

W9's can be found on our website at www.clarke.com

Service for July 2019
A Qrder total 4,750.00
Qrder to ,750.
Aepreds Maint. Srve Jull@
1-320-53% 47

Clarke Aquatic Services, Inc. is a Clarke Company

T | . T

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes unless a valid exemption cerlificate is Emailed to: accountsreceivable@clarke.com or faxed to: 630-672-7439

Helping make communities around the world more flivable, safe and comfortable.



floralawn 2, LLC

Invoice

Premier Lawn & Pest : -
P.O. Box 91597 Date Invoice #
Lakeland, FL 33804 7112019 4024-R
Bill To
‘Poinciana West Comnmunity Development Dist
cfo Governmental Management Services ﬁ E @ E E v E m
-Cenmtral Florida, LLC -
1412 § Nareoossee Rd JUL "8 i
8t. Cloud, F1 34771
BY: e R
P.O. No. Terms Project
Due on receipt
Quantity Description Rata Amount
1 | Monthly Lawn Maintenance per original contract - November 2016 - Poinciana West 4,691.16 4,691.16
CDhD
Billing for July 2019
&7
(-320-52% Ue]
Lowam M@W‘m@n% J‘«l 9
i e o = E— — PR e ————— e —
(/a/\tl)m{? af\a‘Nf ,
Mt t
Thank you for your business,
Total $4,691.16
Corporate Office Solivita Fax E-meil Web Site
{863) 668-0494 (863) 225-9565 7 info@fioralawn.com www.floralawn.com




INVOICE

li

gail consultants

George Flint

Governmental Management Services
9145 Narcoossee Rd Ste A206 BY:
Orlando, FL 32827

Project A171207.00
Professional Services Through June 22,2049 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ -
Task 003 2019 General Support

Professional Personnel

Hours
Engineering Director/Senior Director
Leo, Kathleen 1.00
Totals 1.00
Total Labor
Reimbursable Expenses
Gas Expense & Mileage
Total Reimbursables
Billing Limits Current
Total Billings 341.40
Limit
Remaining
Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
2135249 2/28/2019 961.56
Total 961.56

RE@EEVE
JuL 9 371

Crlando

618 E. South Street, Suite 700

QOrlando, FL 32801

July 3, 2019
Project No:
Invoice No:

A171207.00
2139664

Poinciana West Community Development District Engineering Services

Rate Amount
295.00 255,00
295.00
295.00
46.40
1.0 times 46.40 46.40
Prior To-Date
4,649.06 4,990.46
20,000.00
15,009.54
Total this Task $341.40
Total this Invoice $341.40
#¥lg
L )340 . %3“‘
lﬂ'\‘m‘M &n
B T BN

gaiconsultants.com

T 407.423.8398
F 407.843.1070

R —



Project A171207.00 Poinclana West Community Development Dis Invoice 2139664

Billing Backup Wednesday, July 3, 2019
GAI Consultants, Inc. Invoice 2139664 Dated 7/3/2019 11:46:09 AM
Project A171207.00 Poinciana West Community Development Dlstrict Engineering Services
Task 003 2019 General Support
Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount
Engineering Director/Senior Director
04136 Leo, Kathleen 5/20/2019 1.00 295.00 295.00
provide drawings to GMS for files
Totals 1.00 295.00
Total Labor 295.00
Reimbursable Expenses
Gas Expense & Mileage
EX 0085665 572019 Leo, Kathleen / to PWCDD 46.40
Total Reimbursables 1.0 times 46.40 46.40
Total this Task $341.40
Total this Project $341.40
Total this Report $341.40
. e —sEEEE— - e SRR e e E—— |~~~ RS
gaiconsultants.com

Page 2



Detailed Expense Report

Wednesday, July 3, 2019

11:40:44 AM
GAl Consultants, Inc.
Employee 04136 Leo, Kathleen
Signed Electronicaily by: Leo,Kathieen 6/7/2019 8:14:52 AM
Approved Electronically by: Nettuno, Gregory T 6/10/2018 2:11:10 PM
Profit Center G:1:5C:00:000
Expense Report: Period Ending 6/7/19 Report Date: 6/7/2019
Line Date Category Description Project Task Sub Bill Account Amount
Task
1 8/5/2019 ‘ B  INFCM28.10 010 Ll 7e5.00 ) T
Community Non-Project
Business Reason: airport Each Person: il
2 502019 ‘ [FS=——S1" O s [ o
Community Non -Project
3 4/30/2019 ‘ B INFCM28.10 010 765.00 ) =
Community Non-Project
Business Reason: F Each Person: Misc
Industrial Advisory
4 4/24/2019 * Mileage F A171332.00 999 553.00 B
Business Reason: Meeting Travel From/Ti o:_ Travel: 40.00 mi @ 0.580
5  5M1/2019 *Miesags r A181174.00 999 [x] 55300 =
g‘ nic
Business Reason: to Celebraiont Travel Froml_ Travel: 44.00 mi @ 0.580
6 5712019 * Mileage to PWCDD A171207.00 003 001 x] ss3.00 46.40
Painciana West Community Development
Dis
Business Aeason: to CDD mig Travel From/To: office/Solivita Travel: 80.00 mi @ 0.580
7 5152019 * Mileage I e A171208.00 004 001 X] ss3.00 =
- g RS e e {JISTAQT -~ -e— e mrnps oo S PG vt AR . e e v SR
Business Reason: 1N Travel From/T, o:!_ Travel: 80.00 mi @ 0.580
8  6/6/2018 * Mieage to [ BOH A181092.03 999 X 553.00 [
ST
W Travel From/To: [N Travel: 40.00 mi @ 0.580
9  5/0/2019 Telgphonefinte | INFCM28.10 010 [0 74500 0 EBE
f-==%
Community Non-Project
Business Reason:g
E A S jresge- " =y O 7700 ) =
Community Non-Project
Business Reason: [
v7.6.730 (HUBBANS) - Pageiof2



Detailed Expense Report - s

11:40:44 AM
GAl Consultants, Inc.

Employee 04136 Leo, Kathleen

Signed Electronically by: Leo,Kathleen 6/7/2019 8:14:52 AM

Posted

Approved Electronically by: Nettuno, Gregory T 610/2019 2:11:10 PM

Profit Center G:1:5C:00:000

Expense Report: Period Ending 6/7119 Report Date: 6/7/2019

Line Date Categoary Description Project Task Sub Bill  Account Amount

Task
Total Expenses ==
Amount Advanced
Total Due [
el = = - o ESRERRE e e — RERCEPR

v7.6.730 (HUBBANS) - Page 2 of 2



THE LEDGER

LEGAL ADVERTISING INVOICE NUMBER
FEDERAL ID # 47 2464860 LOBOGOIXFO
BILLED AC IT NUMBER
(S BILLED ACGOUNT NAME AND ADDRESS' REMITTANCE ADDRESS

STACIE

POINCIANA WEST CDD LAKELAND LEDGER PUBLISHING

135 W CENTRAL BLVD STE 320 PO BOX 913004

ORLANDQ, FL 32801 ORLANDO, FL 32891

PLEASE RETURN THIS INVOICE ALONG WTH YOUR REMITTANCE
NEWSPAPER
DATE REFERENCE Description Size PAID NET AMOUNT
L6/28/2018| LOGOGOIXFO |FIRST PRINT 1X75 $ 36050
#7/5/2018] LOBOGOIXFQ |SECOND PRINT 1X75 $ 360.50
ADOPTION OF BUDGETS
RECEIVED
JUL 0 8 2019
BY:
¥ {0
1~ 36 -S} -3
Rab.Heae. o2fe1- lst prink
il smeie e ew2a Mq{, 01/” -3’10(5?““*_ e R v e|  —— —
BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER: 758309
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE
$721.00

THE LEDGER, LEGAL ADVERTISING, PO BOX 408, LAKELAND, FL 33801

s



St W . 1 BILLING PERIOD 2 ADVERTISER / CLIENT NAME
el NE HIE .
Thel 2 ws CHIEF 06/03/19 - 06/30/19 Pomcmm WEST CDD
23 TOTALAMOUNTDUE  “UNAPPLIED AMOUNT TERMS OF PAYMENT
LAKELAND, FL - WINTER HAVEN, FL
; eSS« EA . 360.49 NET 15 DAYS
EL(m’;g:f&mggmnﬁ 21 _CURRENTAMOUNTDUE [ 22  30pAYS 60 DAYS OVER 90 DAYS
360.49 .00 .00 .00
ADVERTISING INVOICE and STATEMENT
24 INVOICENUMBER |4 PAGE# | § BILLING DATE 6 BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER | 7 ADVERTISER/CLIENT NUMBER
1029198 1 06/30/19
. 8 - 205
g‘(l;.lﬁ [I: E ANDEI;%ILT Lo REMITTANCE ADDRESS
== 135 W CENTRAL BLVD_STE 320 i LEDGER NS G
ORLANDO FL 32801-2435 gg&%g;gg‘ism_gom
- S LU TUU R TR R U BT BTRE ST | TR L ‘
—
—_—
= 210102919800000360494

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN UPPER PORTION WITH YOUR REMITTANCE

10 DATE [11 NEWSPAPER REFERENCE |12 DESCRIPTION-OTHER GOMMENTSTHARGES | 3§ o SAISIEE < | TIMESRUN |48 GROSSAMOUNT 20 NETAMOUNT
/02 BALANCE FORWARD -,01
6/28 |LO60GO|XFQ POINCIANA WEST COMMU 1x75L 1 360.50 360.50
¢(— |LEGAL LINE AD |NITY DEVELOPMENT DIS$
LKL/FULL,LNET/FULL
notice
0001 LO60GOIXFO
Stacie
JUL 112018
GMS-CF, 1l |
e eTREEE e~ - | e——— —'r—*—— R - ———— e o
WE APPRECIATE YOUR CONTINUED BUSINESS. CONTACT YOUR ACCT
REP DIRECTLY REGARDING AD BILLING DISCREPANQGIES,
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT  AGING OF PAST DUE ACCOUNTS ' =2
21_CURRENT NETAMOUNT DUE | 22 30 DAYS 80 DAYS OVER 90 DAYS “UNAPPLIED AMOUNT |23 TOTALAMOUNT DUE
360.49 .00 .00 .00 360.49
INGIEESY News CHIEF Questions on this Invoice call: i
. Tel: (866) 470-7133 ~ Fax: (863) 802-7825 PO, WO
- ledia”
INVOICE NUMBER Iy BILLING PERIOD & BILLEDACCOUNT NUMBER | 7 ADVERTISER/CLIENT NUMBER | 2 ADVERTISER/ CLIENT NAME
1029198 06/037/19 - 06/30/19 758309 POINCIANA WEST CDD

b



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
THE LEDGER
Lakeland, Polk County, Florida

STATE OF FLORIDA)
COUNTY OF POLK)

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared Brandy Amett
who on oath says that she is an Account Executive for
Advertising at The Ledger, a daily newspaper published at Lakeland
in Polk County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement,

being a

PUBLIC NOTICE

In the matter of POINCIANA WEST CDD

Concerning ADOPTION OF BUDGETS

'was published in said newspaper in the issues of

6-28. 7-5: 2019

Affiant further says that said The Ledger is 2 newspaper published at
Lakeland, in said Polk County, Florida, and that the said newspaper
has hereto been continuously published in said Polk County, Florida,
daily, and has been entered as second class matter at the post office in
Lakeland, in said Polk County, Florida, for a period of one year next
preceding the first publication of the attached copy of advertisement;
and affiant further says that she has neither paid nor promised any
person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or
refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication

in the said newspaper.

Who is personally known to me.

Sworn 1o and subscribed before me this 5th day of July, AD.

R

PATRICIA ANN ROUSE
MY COMMISSION # GG 003762
EXPIRES: October 17, 2020

NG Bonded Thru Notary Public Underwriters

And mestiy may be contnued o

B et =t ]



Hopping Green & Sams

Attomeys and Counselors
119 8. Monroe Straet, Ste. 300
P.0. Box 6526
Tallahasses, FL 32314
B50.222.7500
= = == STATEMENT s===s========== smmmas
July 19, 2019
Poinciana West Community Development District Bill Number 108650
George Flint, District Manager Billed through 06/30/2019
Governmental Management Services
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E #9
St. Cloud, FL 34771 “3‘0-5@-3‘%
g AR
R oo Counsa [ty ey Jun

General Counsel/Monthly Meeting A
PWCDD 00001 MCE
FOR PROF| L SERVICES RE
06/04/19 MCE Review outstanding issues; research conflict issue, 0.20 hrs
06/05/19 MCE Confer with Carpenter. 0.20 hrs
06/05/19 APA Prepare revised All Terrain agreement regarding updated proposal. 0.80 hrs
06/11/19 SRS Prepare revised All Terrain agreement regarding pond bank repairs; research 0.40 frs

status-of same.
06/11/19 APA Finalize lake bank repair agreement; follow-up regarding statewlde mutual aid 1.20 hrs

agreement.
06/17/19 SRS Prepare agreement with Lake & Wetland Management regarding<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>